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The semiconductor industry has arrived at a technological frontier
that now requires the adoption of new materials and processes to
maintain Moore’s Law.

Moore’s Law holds that the capabilities of semiconductor chips—as measured by the total number of transistors—double
every 24 months. Simultaneously, consumers are demanding more from portable electronics, which means reducing chip
power consumption and device leakage so batteries last longer. Up to now, chipmakers have been able to keep pace
with these competing demands mostly through continual refinements in device designs and in the improved precision of
the tools used to build integrated circuits. .

But, the point at which enhanced fabrication tools can carry the progressive demands of Moore’s Law and consumers is
virtually at an end. Today, the primary focus of delivering confinuclclr repeatable accuracy and performance in a world
measured in nanometers has moved beyond the tools—and onto advanced process materials.

Technology announcements from leading-technology chipmakers highligiht the critical role materials now play in the most
advanced chips. ”Hiﬂf‘rk” materials, featured in the announcements, will help chip performance, reduce device leakage,
and increase portability.

From now on, it's all about materials: nothing else will allow the industry to continue its historical growth
and innovation path.

Meanwhile, the cost of building and equipping a state-of-the-art fabrication facility can exceed $5 billion, and poses
substantial risks in the face of rapidly shifting consumer demands. In fact, complexity is becoming so great, and the cost
so astronomical, some major chip companies—and there are only about a dozen worldwide whose revenues exceed the
cost of building a new fab—are deciding to outsource process development research and chip production. The cost of
duplicative competitive development is no longer feasible.

But, the chipmakers’ ability to ramp new, complex processes requires integrating many more new materials.
The simple answer to the complexity in nascent semiconductor production processes: materials experts.

For example, ATM! began high-k materials and process development work in the late 1980’s, beginning work with major
chipmakers in the 1990’s. We don't believe anyone knows more about making, delivering, and processing high-k mate-
rio': than ATMI. The new matericls frontier has created tremendous opportunities for those with the know-how toering new
materials like these into production quickly and effectively. This is what sets ATMI apart from its competition.

As materials experts with a full spectrum of materials developed for the most advanced processes, ATMI can enable cus-
tomers to get to market more rapidly. Improving our customers’ profitability and return on invested capital opens a path
for ATMI to share the benefits.
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{in thousands, except per share data)

December 31, 2006 2005 2004 2003 2002
Revenues $325913  $281,754  $246,291  $171,634  $136,975
Operating income 47,017 40,409 37,379 6,686 4,134
Income from continuing operations 39,961 30,722 20,106 1,988 1,772
Income (loss} from operations of disconfinued operations,
net of taxes - - 3,313 (11,907) (32,493
Gain on sale of discontinued operations,
net of fuxes - - 8,083 - -
Net income {loss) 39,961 30,722 31,502 (9,919} (30,721}
Diluted earnings per share from continuing operations $1.08 $0.85 $0.64 $0.06 $0.06
Diluted earnings {loss] per share from operations of
discontinued operations $ - $ — $0.10 $(0.38) ${1.05)
Diluted earnings per share from gain on sale of
discontinued operations $ - $ - $0.26 $ - $ -
Diluted earnings {loss) per common share $1.08 $0.85 $1.00 ${0.32) $(0.99)
Weighted-average shares outstanding—
assuming dilution 36,859 36,276 31,650 31,208 30,997
{in thousands)
December 31, 2006 2005 2004 2003 2002
Working capital $281,362 $274,323  $190,874  $235204 $276,717
Total assets 488,037 499,836 470,100 414,442 416,482
Long-term obligations 1,669 3,460 118,255 115,406 115,346
Total stockholders” equity 435496 452720 298,098 254773 256,390
See pages 9-36 for ATMI's detailed financial information,
Income from Diluted Earnings Per Share from
Revenues Continving Operations Continuing Operations
{dollars, in thousands) {dollars, in thousands) {doltars)
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I am pleased to tell you that 2006 was another year
of growth and progress for ATMI. It was alse an
interesting year for the semiconductor industry
overall. In what has been described as a more
mature market—certainly as evidenced by slowing
industry growth, consolidation, and the focus on all
aspects of the supply chain—ATMI was able to find
and realize opportunities that resulted in revenue
growth of 16% and an earnings per share increase
of 27%. In 2006, we made great strides to reach
our dream of being recognized as The Source of
Semiconductor Process Efficiency™ for the world’s
leading device manufacturers. We are well posi-
tioned to continue generating strong revenuve and
earnings growth as the industry enters its next

phase of technological innovation.

2 ATMI, Inc,

ATMI was able to find and realize opportunities
that resulted in revenue growth of 16%
and an earnings per share increase of 27%.

2006 Highlights
Among ATMI’s more significant achievements in 2006:

e Shipping our 80,000th SDS® cylinder, exceeding
$500 million in cumulative SDS sales, and implant-
ing more than 16 billion cumulative wafers, which
were turned into more than 3 trillion devices.

o Establishing production capabilifies for selected
cleans chemistries and materials packaging prod-
ucts in Asia to more closely support our key cus-
tomers there, who account for approximately 60%
of our revenues.

e Opening ATMI's Technology Development Center
in Hsin Chu, Taiwan, and strengthening our tech-
nology development parinerships with the world's
leading chip producers, both integrated device

manufacturers and foundries.




ATMI is
generating
nearly 40% of

revenue from new products.

o Generating approximately 40% of our revenue
from new products that were not in the ATMI port-
folio of released products in 2003—the vast

majority from internal, organic activities.

It was also a year of further recognition by industry
peers. Three ATMI Scientists, Jose Arno, Don Carruthers,
and Ed Sturm, were honored at the American Chemical
Society’s 232nd annual meeting for work that contributed
to “the welfare and progress of humanity” incorporated
in our SDS3 product. And ATMI co-founder and
Chairman Gene Banucci received the Medal of
Technology from the State of Connecticut for his contribu-
tions to ATMI and technology development in Connecticut
throughout our 20-year history. This type of recognition

inspires the Company’s employees to reach even higher.

Technological Complexity and Opportunity

As the industry has grown, consumer electronics—noto-
rious for short product lifecycles—consume a higher
percenlage of overall integrated circuit output. Our cus-
tomers—the world’s leading semiconductor manufac-
turers—-face increasing competitive and cost pressures
as they extend the historic pattern of doubling the
capabilities of chips every 24 months or so, without
changing the price. The twin forces at play are the
spiraling costs of developing the processes to build
high-performance and low-power integrated circuits
from entirely new material sets, along with the enor-
mous cost of building new fabs that incorporate these

new processes.

ATMI, Tnc. 3
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Qur customers used to be able to produce ever more
powerful chips by using improved manufacturing
tocls. The limits of tool refinements for most processes
have been reached, so our customers look to expand
chip performance through the materials used to make
the chip itself. These new materials can increase
process complexity, which raises the financial stakes,
so customers now more than ever need to optimize
existing processes, while simultaneously making sure
they get the new processes right from the very begin-
ning. In a multi-billion-dollar plant—which costs bil-
lions more to run each year—every materials process
improvement is critical. Solutions that can be rapidly

incorporated to drive manufacturing efficiencies are

4 ATMI, Inc.

terials and materials

*

precious. Time saved in an integrated circuit fab quickly

turns into dollars of profit.

ATMI addresses the needs of its customers by bring-
ing leading-edge materials and materials-focused
process efficiency solutions to market quickly, and by
applying such cost-effective innovations to previous

device generations where it makes sense to do so.

Value Creation

These forces have been building for several years, and
we have been reshaping ATMI to redlize the opportunity
to create value in this time of great change by investing

in development processes, and by building teams of
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process experts who understand our customers’ pres-
sures very well, and think about solutions whenever
talking to them. We speak to customers in their lan-
guage, defining value as our ability to help them
reduce the overall cost to develop and run o process,
while increasing the output from that process. Simply

defined, it's “Process Efficiency.”

We strive to do this in several ways. For many years,
we have been developing and delivering a comprehen-
sive spectrum of high-performing materials for the most
advanced processes—delivering discrete material ben-
efits in o discrete process. We know that delivering

materials used in interrelated processes can provide

multiple cycle time benefits to our customers, so we
have expanded our product and solutions offerings and

are in a great position to do business in just this way.

To achieve the maximum benefit, discussions with cus-
tomers begin early in their discovery process, when
decisions that most affect long-term process costs are
made. Building on the history of our most successhul
products, in the development phase we lock for ways
to incorporate the delivery of a material to a toof in o
way that is totally different—and far more effective—
than conventional means. This early stage approach
enables customers to ramp extremely complex device

processes to production more quickly and efficiently.

ATMI, Inc. 5
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lt's a differentiating capability for ATMI, and a great
example of ATMI as The Source of Semiconductor

Process Efficiency.

Development at Many Levels

Of course, doing business this way requires employees
with unique skills. ATMI employees demonstrate their
creativity and inventiveness day in and day out, and
our broad organization development efforts are
focused on turning this creotivity and inventiveness into
products and solutions that deliver long-term sustainable
growth. To this end, in 2006 we focused significont
resources on what we call “action-based” employee
development activities that, by their very design, give
employees skills that immediately get used in solving

business problems and improving results.

& ATMI, Inc.

The focus of industry leaders on
materials and process development
plays to many of ATMI's strengths.

A great example of how our different development
activities converge to satisfy customers can be found in
one of our new “wafer efficiency” materials. A key
foundry partner was discarding wafers that they
thought could be reused—but only if o process were
developed to remove a specific film. We deployed
ATMI's global materials and process expertise and,
using Six Sigma design and manufacturing principles,
brought to market an entirely new material, developed
in 25% of the normal time and ramped ot a record
pace, for which the customer gave us their highest lev-

el of formal recognition.

ATMI's materials and process expertise helped preclude
advantage-destroying “surprises” from surfacing in the

manufacturing ramp process, when time is critical and




materials and
process expertise
contribute to risk reduction,

time savings, and dramatically
improved cost of ownership.

return on invested capital can erode. In this case, as in
many others, our contributions were risk reduction, time

savings, and dramatically improved cost of ownership.

With so much on the line, ATMI can provide chipmakers
with process efficiency—in ion implantation, deposition,
planarization, and surface preparation materials and
process knowledge—which can create dramatic leaps
of value. This value added creates demonstrable return
on invested capital, and we are working to share the

value that our comprehensive contributions provide.

Looking Forward
The continuing consolidation of the industry, coupled
with the focus of industry leaders on materials and

process development, plays to many of ATMI's strengths:

* Qur copabilities in new deposition precursors and
the technology to deposit and further process the
films at 45 nanometer dimensions and below.

* Qur ability fo improve customers’ return on invested
capital by delivering process efficiency benefits
that go deeper into existing plotforms, while
branching out into adjacent process platforms.

* The ability to quickly move new products from
development into commercial application, such as:

o RegenSi™, for cleaning, reclaiming, and reusing
partially processed wafers, removing significant
process, inventory, and logistics expenses

o AutoClean™, a novel method of ion implanter
cleaning that can reduce downtime from days

or hours to minutes

ATMI, Ine. 7




ATMI can provide chipmakers with

process efficiency which can create

dramatic leaps of value.

o ProE-Vap®, our process efficiency vaporizer, which
reliably and repeatably enables the delivery and
deposition of advanced solid materials for high-k

dielectric chip layers.

We have a history of growing revenues twice as fast as
wafer starts, a basic measure of industry growth, but the
belief inside ATMI is that we can do even better than
that. We are constantly on the lookout for ways we can
apply our core competencies and employee capabilities
as levers to find totally new ways to solve problems for

customers, inventing new opportunities for us.

8 ATMI, Inc.

Our focus on long-term value creation through the
development of technologies, processes, materials, and
expertise will increase customer return on invested capital,

which will increase our return to you.

| believe our best days are ahead of us, and all of us at

ATMI hope you will join us on the journey.

bt/

Douglas Neugold,
Chief Executive Officer
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Selected Financial Data

Fiscal Year Ended December 31, 2004 2005 2004
Consolidaied Statements of Operations:
Revenues $325,913 $281,754 $246,291 $171,634 };6 75
Cost of revenues 162,530(1) 140,251 122,415 89,9025 \ ,8',424:}-""/
Gross profit 163,383 141,503 123,876 81,732 * .,687551
Opercting expenses:
Research and development 26,217 22,284 19,577 19,1708 13,843
Selling, general, and administrative 90,149 78,810 66,920 54,145 50,572
Restructuring and other charges - — — 1,731(7) -
Total operating expenses 116,366 101,094 86,497 75,046 64,415
Operating income 47,017 40,409 37,379 6,686 4,136
Interest income {expense], net 8,324 5,407 (3,442) (3,862) {1,803)
Other income (expense}, net 515 {432) (3,473)4) (5,453)i8) 390
Income (loss) before income faxes 55,856 45,384 30,464 (2,629) 2,723
Provision (benefit) for income taxes 15,895(2) 14,662 10,358 4,617)9) 951
Income from continuing operafions 39,961 30,722 20,106 1,988 1,772
Income (loss} from operations of
discontinued operations, net of faxes — - 3,313 {11,907 n0)  (32,493)n2)
Gain on disposal of discontinued operations, net of taxes - - 8,083 — —
Net income (loss) $ 39,961 $ 30,722 $ 31,502 $ (2919  $(30,721)
Diluted eamings {loss) per share:
Eamings per share from continuing operations $1.08 $0.85 $0.64 $0.06 $0.06
Eamings {loss) per share from operations
of discontinued operations - - $0.30 ${0.38) ${1.05)
Eamnings per share from gain on disposal
of discontinued operations — — $0.26 - —
Eomings {loss) per common share $1.08 $0.85 $1.00 $(0.32) $(0.99)
Weighted-average shares outstanding—ossuming dilution 36,859 36,276 31,650 31,208 30,997
Consclidated Balance Sheet Data:
Cash, cash equivalents, and marketable securifies (13) $219,066 $256,137 $238,940 $128,700  $166,178
Working capital 281,362 274,323 190,874 235,204 276,717
Total ossets 488,037 499,836 470,100 414 442 416,482
Long-term obligations 1,669 3,4601) 118,255 115,406 115,346
Total stockholders’ equity 435,496 452,7203) 298,098 254,773 256,390

(1} Includes $1.4 million one-lime recovery of value-odded tuxes in Jopen related to 2005.
{3 Includes o benefit of $1.7 million reloted to adjustment of our tox liabilities.
{3) Includes effect of conversion of the Company's 5.25% converfible subardinated notes due November 15, 2006 into 5,183,095 shares of common stock.
) Includes o $4.5 million osset impainment charge reloted to the Compony’s sirategic investment portiolio.
{5} Includes charges of $2.7 million to write down inventory balances in :he liquid chemistries and defivery equipment product lines.
{6} Indudes $0.7 million of in-process resoarch and developrent expensed in connection with the ESC, Inc. aequisition. .
{7) Represertts o $2.4 million osset impoirment charge related o the: Company's former liquid chemistries manufocturing focility, portially offset by o $0.7 million gain releted to subleass income kom o former tenant
in the Compony's Danbusy, Canneticut facility.
{8) Inchdes $5.7 million of asset impairment charges reloted to the Compony's sirategic investment portfolio.
() Inchsdes $3.0 million of tox benefit recognized as o result of a fevorable LS. Tax Court judgment.
{10) Includes a §2.6 million (net of $1.5 millian tax benefit) charge for excess and cbsoleta imventory.
{11} Includes $1.0 miltion gain from the sale of availcble-for-sale sacurities, offset by a $0.4 millian writs-dawn of other available-for-sale securities.
(12) Includes an asset impaiment charga of $21.8 million {net of tax benefit of $12.8 miflion} to recognize the impoiment of assuts in the Compony's fomer gallium ide epitaal services b
13) Includes non-curent marketoble securities of $14.4 million, $46.3 million, $105.8 million, 3.7 million, and $4.0 million ot December 31, 2006, 2005, 2004, 2003, und 2002, rupedrvely
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Management’s Discussion and Analysis of
Financial Condition and Results of Operations

Company Overview

ATMI believes it is a leading supplier of high pedfarmance moterials,
moterials packaging, and materials delivery systems used worldwide in
the manufacture of microelecironic devices. ATMI targets both semicon-
ductor and flat-panel display manufacturers, whose producis form the
foundation of microelectronics technology rapidly proliferating through
the information technology, cutomofive, communication, and consumer
products industries. The market for microelectronics devices is growing
ond continually changing, which drives demand for new products and
technologies af lower cost. ATMI's objective is to meet the demands of
microelectronic manufacturers with solutions that maximize the efficiency
of their manufacturing processes and minimize the fime to ramp new
processes and deliver new products. ATMI's customers include many of
the leading semiconductor and flat-panel display manufacturers in the
world who target leading-edge technologies.

During 2004, ATMI significantly reduced its exposure fo the capital equip-
ment cycles of the semiconductor industry by selling non-core product lines.
The non-core product lines that we exited by sale included the following:
environmental abatement equipment, materials sensing and monitoring
equipment, speciatty thin-film deposifion services, outsourced parts cleaning
and tool maintenance services, our smartcard device venture, and gallium
nitride materials.

See Note 2 to our consolidated financic!l statements for addifional
details ubout the discontinued operations.

Criticol Accounting Policies and Estimates
General

The methods, estimates, and judgments we use in opplying our
accounting policies hove a significant impact on the results we report in
our financial stafements, which we discuss under the heading *Results of
Operations” following this section of our Management's Discussion and
Analysis. Some of our accounting policies require us to make difficult and
subjective judgments, often as a result of the need o moke estimates of
matters that are inherently unceriain, Our most critical accounting esti-
mates include the valuation of non-marketable equity securifies, which
impadts our determination of impairment; allowances for doubtful
accounts, which impacts revenues; recognifion and measurement of cur-
rent and deferred income tox assets and liabilities, which impact our tax
provision; depreciation and amorfization of long-lived assets, equity-
based compensation, and valuation of inventory, which impact operating
incomne. Below, we discuss these policies further, as well as the estimates
and judgments involved. We also have other policies that we consider key
accounting policies, such as policies for revenue recognifion, including
the deferral of revenue on sales of equipment with acceptonce criteri;
however, these policies typically do not require us fo make estimates or
judgments that are difficult or subjective.

Revenue Recognition

We recognize revenue in accordance with SEC Staff Accounting
Bullefin No. 104, “Revenue Recognifion” {“SAB No. 104), which
requires that four basic criteria must be met before revenue can be rec-
ognized: (1) persuasive evidence of an arrangement exists; (2) delivery
has occurred or services have been rendered; (3) the fee is fixed or deter-
minable; and {4) collectibility is reasonably assured. Revenues from prod-
uct soles are generally recognized upon delivery to @ common carrier
when terms are FOB origin, and upon receipt by a customer when ferms

10 ATMI, Inc.

are FOB destination. In instances where finol acceptance of equipment is
specified by the purchase agreement, revenue is deferred until all accept-
ance criteria have been sofisfied. Should changes in conditions cause
management to determine these criterio are not met for certain future
transactions, revenue recognized for any reporting period could be
adversely offected. We accrue lor sales returns, warranty costs, and other
allowances based on a current evaluation of our experience based on
stated terms of the transactions. Should actual product failure rates
or customer return experience differ from our estimates, revisions to
the estimated accruals would be required.

The Company uses an exclusive confract manufacturer, which is also
an exclusive distribution partner, for the manufacture and distribution of
its SDS products (the “Licensed Products”). Under the terms of the manu-
facturing agreemeni, ATMI retains the right to manufocture 25% of oll
Licensed Products, while the contract manufacturer has the right to man-
ufacture 75% of all Licensed Products. Upon completion of manufacture,
ATMI purchases all Licensed Products produced by the contract manufac-
turer. Under the terms of the distribution agreement, we receive payment
from the distributor based upon a formula which is dependent on the sale
price obtained by the distributor fo its customer. ATMI recognizes revenve
from the sole of Licensed Produdts to this distribufion pariner when the
distributor sells the Licensed Products fo its customers, because that is
when the sales price becomes fixed and determinable by the Company.

Altowance for Doubtful Accounts

The allowance for doubtful accounts is established to represent our
best estimate of the net realizable value of the outstanding accounts
receivable balances. We estimate our allowance for doubtful accounts
based on past due amounts and historical write-off experience, as well as
trends and factors surrounding the credit risk of the specific customers. In
an effort to identify adverse trends, we perform periodic credit evaluations
of our customers and ongoing account balance reviews and ogings of
receivables. Amounts are considered past due when poyment hos not
been received within the time frame of the credit terms extended. Write-
offs are charged directly against the allowance for doubtful accounts and
occur only after all collection efforts have been exhausted. Actual write-
offs ond adjustments could differ from the allowance esfimates due to
unonticipated changes in the business environment as well as factors and
risks surrounding specific customers.

Inventories

The valuation of inventory requires us to estimate obsolete or excess
inventory, as well as inventory that is not of saleable quality, We value
inventories using the first-in, first-out {FIFO} cost method. Inventories are
stated at the lower of cost or market and we write down the value of
inventories for estimaled obsolescence and excess quantities on hand,
and for known adverse conditions and circumstances. Eoch quarter, we
make estimates of future demand by using the latest forecasts and known
market condifions available to us. If our demand forecast for specific
produdts is greater than actual demand and we foil fo reduce manutac-
turing output accordingly, we could be required to write down additional
inventory, which would have a negative impact on our gross margin.




Non-markefable Equity Securities

We selectively invest in non-marketable equily securities of private com-
panies, which range from early-stage companies that are often sfill defining
their strategic direction, to more mature companies whose products or tech-
nologies may directly support an ATMI product or initiative. A December 31,
2006, the carrying value of our porffolio of strategic investments in non-
marketable equity securifies totaled $11.8 million ($10.2 million in 2005).
Non-marketable equity securities are included in the consolidated balance
sheefs under the caption “Other long-term assets.”

Investments in non-marketable equity securities are inherently risky, and
some of these companies are likely to fail. Their success {or lack thereof}
is dependent on product development, market acceptance, operaticnal
efficiency, oftracting and retaining falented professionals, and other key
business success factors. In addition, depending on their future prospects,
they may not be able fo raise additional funds when needed or they may
receive lower valuations, with less favorable investment terms than in
previous financings, and the investments would likely become impaired.

We review our investments quarterly for indicators of impairment; how-
ever, for non-markefable equity securifies, the impairmeni analysis
requires significant judgment to identify events or circumstances that
would likely have a significant adverse eflect on the fair value of the
investment. The indicators that we use to identify those events or circum-
stances include (o) the investee’s revenue and eamings frends relative to
predefined milestones and overall business prospects; (b} the technolog-
icol feasibility of the investee’s products and technologies; {c) the general
marke! conditions in the investee's industry or geographic area, including
adverse regulatory or economic changes; (d) foctors related to the
investee’s ability to remain in business, such as the investee's liquidity,
and the rate at which the investee is using its cash; and {e) the investes's
receipt of additional funding ot a lower voluation.

Investments identified as having en indicator of impairment are subject
to further analysis to determine if the investment is other than temporarily
impaired, in which cose we write the investment down to ils impaired
value. When an investee is not considered viable from a financial or tech-
nological poini of view, we write down the entire investment, since we
consider the esiimated fair market value o be nominal. If on investee
obtains additional funding of a valuation lower than our canying amount,
or requires a new round of equity funding fo siay in operafion ond the
new funding does not appear imminent, we presume that the investmen
is other than temporarily impaired, unless specific facts and circum-
stances indicate otherwise. Impoirments of investments in our pertfolio of
non-markefable equity securifies were approximately $0.3 million in
2006 ($0.4 million in 2005 and $4.5 million in 2004).

Income Taxes

We must make certoin estimates and judgments in defermining income
tox expense for financiol statement purposes. These esfimates and judgments
occur in the calculation of tax credits, tax benefits, dedudiions, and in the cal-
culation of certain tax assets and liabilifies, which arise from differences in
the fiming of recognition of revenue and expense for tax and financial state-
ment purposes. Significant changes to these estimates may result in an
increase or decrease to our fax provision in o subsequent period.

We must assess the likelihood thot we will be able to recover our
deferred tax assets. If recovery is not likely, we must increase our provi-
sion for taxes by recording a valuation allowance against the deferred tax
assets that we estimate will not ulimaiely be recoverable. We believe thot
o substantial majority of the gross deferred tox asseis will ulimately be
recovered. However, should there be a change in our ability to recover
our deferred fax assets, our tox provision would increase in the period in
which we determined that the recovery was not likely.

In addition, the caleulation of our tax liabilities involves dealing with
uncertainties in the application of complex tax regulations. We recognize
liobilities for anficipated tax issues in the United States and ofher fax juris-
dictions based on our estimate of whether, and the extent to which, oddi-
tional tax payments are probable. If we ulfimately determine thot payment of
these amounts is unnecessary, we reverse the liability and recognize a tax
benefit during the period in which we determine that the liability is no longer
necessary. We record an additional charge in our provision for taxes in the
period in which we determine thot the recorded tax liabifity is less fhan we
expect the ulimate assessment to be. For o discussion of current tax matters,
see Note 10 to the consolidated financial statements.

Depreciation and Amortization

We depreciate our property, plan, and equipment using the straight-fine
method over the estimated useful life of the asset, The depreciation periods
used are as follows: buildings, 15 to 35 years; machinery and equipment, 3
to 15 years; fumiture and fixtures, 5 yeors; and leasehold improvements are
amortized over the lesser of the lease term or estimated useful iife. ATMI uses
occelerated depreciation methods for fax purposes where appropriate.

We amortize our patents ond other omortizable intangible ossets over
their estimated useful lives. All amortizable intangible assefs are amortized
using the straighi-line method over the estimated useful lives of the assets,
ranging from 3 1o 14 years.

Equity-Based Compensation

Effective January 1, 2006, the Company odopted Statement of Financial
Accounting Standards (*SFAS") No. 123(R) [“SFAS No. 123(R)") ond
related inferprefations which require the measurement and recognition of
compensation expense for all equity-based payments fo employees and
directors based on their {air value. Prior to 2006, the Company accounted
for equity-based compensation using the intrinsic value method under
Accounting Principles Board Opinion No. 25 {APB No. 25}, *Accounting
for Stock Issued to Employees,” as permitied under SFAS No. 123,
‘Accounting for Stock-Based Compensation.” Accordingly, stock option
expense was nof recognized in net income as the exercise price of options
granted was equal to the market value of the stock ai the date of grant. The
Company provided pro forma net income and eamings per share omounts
as if stock option expense had been recognized based on fair value, in the
footnotes os required.

The Company hos elected the modified-prospective-transition method
as permitted by SFAS No. 123(R). Prior periods have not been restated to
reflect the impact of equity-based compensction expense. Equity-based
compensation expense hos been recorded for all new and unvested stock
options that are expected to vest over the service period beginning on
January 1, 2006.

The Company uses the Black-Scholes-Merton oplions-pricing model to
determine the fair value of stock options under SFAS No. 123{R), consis-
tent with that used for pro forma disclosures in prior years. Management
is required to make cerfain assumptions with respect to selected model
inputs, including anticipated changes in the underlying stack price [i.e.,
expected volatility) and option exercise octivity {i.e., expected term}. For
awards gronfed subsequent to January 1, 2006, expected volotility is
based on the historical volatility of ATMI common stock for a period
shorter than the expected term of the options. We have excluded the his-
forical volafility prior to the public announcement regarding the sale of our
non-core businesses in 2004, becouse those businesses that were sold
represented a significant portion of ATMI's consolidated business and were
subject to considerable cyclicality associoted with the semiconductor
equipment industry, which drove increased volatility in ATMI's stock price.
The expected term of options granted is cumently derived using the “sim-
plified” method as allowed under the provisions of the Securities and
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Exchange Commission's Staff Accounting Bulletin No. 107 and represents
the period of fime thot options granted are expected to be outstanding.
The risk-free rate is based on the U.S. Treasury yield curve in effect ot the
time of grant for a period commensurate with the estimated expected Iife.
If facters change and result in different assumptions in the application of
SFAS No. 123{R) in future periods, the stock option expense that the
Company records for future grants may differ significantly from what the
Company has recorded in the curent period.

As of December 31, 2006, $7.5 million of unrecognized compensa-
tion cost reloted to non-vested stock options is expected 1o be recognized
over a weighted-average period of approximotely 1.3 years. As of
December 31, 2006, $7.7 million of unrecognized compensation cost
related to restricted stock is expecied to be recognized over a weighted-
average period of approximately 2.2 years.

Pricr to the adoption of SFAS No. 123(R), the Company presented tax
benefits resulting from the equity-bosed compensation as operdfing cash
flows in the consolidated statements of cash flows. SFAS No. 123(R) requires
that cosh flows resulfing from tox deductions in excess of recognized
compansation cost be classified as financing cash flows.

In accordance with SFAS No. 123(R), in the defermination of equity-
basec compensation cost, the Company estimates the total number of
instruments that will be forfeited as a result of o failure to provide the req-
visite service to eam the award. Prior to the adoption of SFAS No. 123(R),
for purposes of the pro forma disclosures under SFAS No. 123, the
Company did not make an estimate of forfeitures, but instead subse-
quently reversed pro forma compensation cost for forfeited awards when
the awards were actually forfeited. The effect of forfeitures on restricted
stock was not material in periods prior fo January 1, 2006.

Equity-based compensation expense is generally recognized on a straight-
line basis over the stated vesfing period.

Markefable Securities

We account for marketable securifies in occordance with SFAS No. 115,
“Accounting for Certin Investments in Debt and Equity Securities” as
amended by FASB Staff Position FAS 115-1 and FAS 124-1, “The Meaning
of OtherThon-Temporary Impairment and lts Application fo Certain
Investments,” (*FSP 115-17). FSP 115-1 provides guidance on determining
when invesiments in cerioin debt and equity securities are considered
impaired, whether that impairment is other-than-temporary, and on meas-
uring such impairment loss. FSP 115-1 also includes accounting consider-
atiors subsequent o the recognition of other-than-temporary impairment
losses and requires cerlain disclosures about unrealized losses that have not
been recognized os other-than-temporary impairments. All of the
Company’s marketable securifies are classified as available-for-sale as of
the balance sheet date and are reported of foir value, based on quoted
market prices, with unrealized gains and losses included in stockholders’
equily os a component of accumuloted other comprehensive income, net
of applicable taxes. Marketable securities that are in o temporarily impaired
position, where management has the ability and intent to hold until antici-
pated recovery or maturity, are clossified os either current or non-current
based on the remaining confractual maturity of the security. Those securi-
fies in a temporarily impaired posifion with contractual maturities greater
thar one year are classified as non-cumrent.

Goodwill and Other Infangible Assets

We account for goodwill in accordance with SFAS No. 142, “Goodwill
and Cther Intangible Assets.” At December 31, 2006, the Company hod
$13.7 million of goodwill (also $13.7 million in 2005), representing the
cost of acquisitions in excess of fair values assigned to the underlying net
assets of acquired companies. In accordance with SFAS MNa. 142,
goodwill is not amortized, but is subject to annual impairment testing.
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The ossessment of goodwill involves the estimation of the fair vafue of
reporting units, as defined by SFAS No. 142. Monagement completed this
annuol assessment during the fourth quarter of 2006 based on the best
informalion ovailable as of the date of the assessment, which incorpo-
rated management's ossumptions about expected future cash flows.
Based on this assessment, there was no goodwill impairment as of
December 31, 2006. Future cash flows can be affected by changes in the
global economy and local economies, changes in the microelectronics
industry, changes in technology, and the execufion of management's
plans. There can be no assurance that future events will not result in
impairment of goodwill.

W review the carrying values of intangible assets and long-lived assets
for impairment when facts or circumstances indicate that the carrying
valve of intangibles ond long-lived assets or other assets may be
impaired. Factors that we consider in deciding when to perform an
impairment review include significant under-performance of o product
line in relation fo expectations, significont negofive industry or economic
trends, and significant changes or plonned chonges in our use of the
assels, An impairment review consists of a specific evaluation of the assets
or groups of assets to determine whether any impairment exists, by com-
paring the estimated future undiscounted cash flows associoted with the
assel o the assei’s carrying amount. If the review indicates that the asset
is impaired, then an impairment loss representing the difference between
the asset's fair value and ifs carrying value is recognized.

Recent Accounting Pronouncements
See Note 1 1o the consolidated finoncial statements for information
conceming recent occounting pronouncements.

Results of Operations

The following table shows the effect of compensation cost arising from
equity-based payment arrangements on the consolidated statements of
income [in thousands):

December 31, 2006 2005 2004
Cost of revenues $ 910 § — §—
Research and development 773 — —
Sales, general, and administrative 7,681 2,224 589
Totol equity-based

compensation expense 9,364 27226 589

Benefit from income taxes 3137 720 204

Net equity-based
compensation expense

§6,227 51,506  $385

Year Ended December 31, 2006 Compared to Year Ended
December 31, 2005
Overview

During the year ended December 31, 2006, ATMI's revenues grew by
15.7% compared to the year ended December 31, 2005, Net income for
the year increased 30.1% to $40.0 million (31.08 per diluted share)
compared to $30.7 million ($0.85 per diluted share} in 2003, Net
income for 2006 includes o tox benefit of $1.7 million ($0.04 per diluted
share), related to adjustment of tax liabilifies due to changes in focts and
circumstonces. We recognized approximately $9.4 million in equily-
based compensation expense in 2006 versus $2.2 million (prior to SFAS
No. 123{R} adoption) in 2005. Qur gross margin remained flat at 50.1%
in 2006 compared to 50.2% in 2005. The 2006 gross margin includes
a one-time $1.4 million recovery of volue-added toxes (“VAT") by our
Japanese subsidiary related to 2005 (0.4% of revenues). Despite incremental




equity-based compensation expense of $5.5 million reflected in selling,
general, and administrative (*SG&A") expenses in 2006 versus 2005, our
SG&A declired o5 a percentage of revenues {27.7% in 2006 versus
28.0% in 2005).

Below is @ summory of selected consolidated esmings information {in
thousands of dallars):

December 31, 2006 2005 % Chonge
Revenues $325913 $281,754 15.7%
Cost of revenues 162,530 140,251 15.9%
Gross profit 163,383 141,503 15.5%
Gross margin percent 50.1% 50.2% 0.1%
Reseorch and development 26,217 22,284 17.6%
R&D as a percent of revenues 8.0% 7.9% 0.1%
Sales, general, and adminisirative 90,149 78,810 14.4%
SGB8A os a percent of revenues  27.7% 28.0% (0.3)%
Operating income 47,017 40,409 16.4%
Operating margin 14.4% 14.3% 0.1%
Effective fox rate 28.5% 32.3% (3.8)%
Net income $ 39961 § 30,722 30.1%
Diluted earnings per share $1.08 $0.85 27.1%

Revenues. Revenves increased 15.7% to $325.9 million in 2006 from
$281.8 million in 2005. This increase was broad-based across our prod-
uct porttolic. Waler start-driven volume increases benefited the Company's
copper advanced interconnect materials (such as cleans and plating prod-
ucts) and increased SDS product sales volumes. Strength in the Asian flas-
panel display market in the first half of 2006 drove volume increases in our
advanced high-purity materials pockaging and dispensing systems.

Gross Profit. Gross profit increased 15.5% to $163.4 million in 2006
from $141.5 million in 2005. The adoption of SFAS No. 123(R} in 2004
increased cost of goods sold by $0.9 million in 2006. Our gross margin
percentage was flot ot 50.1% in 2006 compared to 50.2% in 2005. The
2006 gross margin includes the positive impact of a one-time $1.4 mil-
lion recovery of VAT by our Japanese subsidiary related to 2005.
Excluding the one-time VAT recovery, our gross margin was 49.7%. The
primary reason for the reduction in gross margin, excluding the one-time
VAT recovery in 2006, was incremental costs incumed in the first quarter
of 2006 associoted with ramping a new high-volume packaging produc-
tion line in the U.S. and the adoption of SFAS No. 123{R} in 2006 men.
tioned above. Portially offsetting these negative items were lower freight
costs and favorable changes in product mix in 2006.

Research and Development Expenses. Research ond development
{*R&D") expenses increased 17.6% to $26.2 million in 2006 from $22.3
million in 2005, This increase was mainly aftibutable to R&D efforts
related to copper advanced interconned applications and high purity
microelecironics packaging product lines [increased salaries, incentive
compensation, supplies, equipment depreciation, eic). Although R&D
spending increased 17.6% in dellor terms, it remained relatively flat as a
percentoge of revenues at 8.0% in 2006 compared to 7.9% in 2005.
These amounts, as a percent of revenues in 2006, are in line with
our long-term spending targets and reflect our continued focus on the
development of new products and technologies.

Sefling, General, and Adminisirative Fxpenses. Selling, general, and
administrative expenses {“SG&A") increased 14.4% to $90.1 million in
2006 from $78.8 million in 2005. SG&A was reduced to 27.7% of rev-
enues in 2006 versus 28.0% of revenues in 2005, despite a 170 basis
point increase due fo equity-based compensation. In addition to the
impact of adopting SFAS No. 123(R} mentioned above, overall our SG8A
expenses increased due io increased employee-reloted costs (e.g. salaries,

incenfive compensation, recruitment, fringe benefits, etc.) consistent with
our revenue growth model, the costs associated with the closure of an
office site in San Jose, Celifornia, and increased depreciation, which were
partially offset by reduced spending in 2006 for patent litigotion costs.

Operating Income. Operating income increased 16.4% to $47.0 million
in 2006 {representing 14.4% of revenues) from $40.4 million in 2005 {rep-
resenting 14.3% of revenues). These changes are from a variety of factors,
as noted obove.

Interest Income. Inferest income increased to $8.4 million in 2006
from $7.3 million in 2005. The primary reason for the increase is higher
short-term investment returns due to receni interest rale increases.

Interest Expense. Interest expense was negligible in 2006 and $1.9
million in 2005. This reduction is attributable to the conversion of our
convertible subordinated notes info 5.2 million shares of common stock
early in the second quarter of 2005.

Impairment of vestments. The 2006 resulls include a $0.3 million
charge to recognize the impgirment of a strategic cost-basis investment,
while the 2005 results include a $0.4 million charge to recognize the
impairment of a separate strategic cost-basis investment.

Other Income (Loss), net. Other income, net was $0.8 million in 2006
compared fo a net loss of $0.1 million in 2005. Other income in 2006
includes o $0.4 million gain on foreign currency translation, a $0.3 mil-
lion gain on the sale of o building in South Korea, and o $0.2 million
gain from a strolegic cost-basis investment. The net loss in 2005 is pri-
manily related to $1.0 miliion of losses on foreign currency exchange in
2005 due fo weckness in the Japanese Yen against the U.S. dollor.
Partiglly offsetting the foreign currency exchonge losses in 2005 were
gains of $0.3 million on the sale of lend in Texas associcted with the
Company's formar moterials manufacturing site, and $0.4 million related
to the sale of cartain other assels.

Provision for Income Toxes. In 2006, we recognized a benefit of approx-
imately $1.7 million os an adjustment of our tax liabilities os o result of
changes in facts and circumstances. The increose in income before taxes
was the primary driver for the increose in the provision for income taxes.
The effective tax rate for 2006 wos 28.5% compared to an effective tax
rate of 32.3% in 2005. The effective tox rate of 28.5% differs from the
Federal statutory rate of 35.0% primarily due to the recognition of $1.7
million in tox benefits {which represents approximately 300 basis points),
foreign income toxes, tax-exempt income, extra-territorial income (“E71}
exclusion benefits, portially offset by state income taxes. The 2005 effec-
five tax rate of 32.3% differs from the Federal statutory rate of 35.0% pri-
marily because of state and foreign income taxes, offset by ETI exclusion
benefits. As of December 31, 2006, the Company had a net deferred tax
asset of $7.6 million, primarily due to temporary differences, state tox
credit camyforwards, and stote net operating loss camyforwards.

Year Ended December 31, 2005 Compared to Year Ended
December 31, 2004
Overview

During the year ended December 31, 2005, ATMI's revenues grew by
14.4% compared fo the year ended December 31, 2004. Income from
continuing operations for the year increased 52.8% to $30.7 million com-
pared to $20.1 million in 2004. Net income for the yeor decreased 2.5%
to $30.7 million ($0.85 per diluted share) compared to $31.5 million
($1.00 per diluied share) in 2004. Net income for the year ended
December 31, 2004 includes $3.3 million of income from operations of
discorfinued operations and 38.1 million of gains from the sale of discon-
tinued operations. We racognized $2.2 million in equity-bosed compensa-
fion expense in 2005 compared to $0.4 million in 2004. Our gross margin
was flot at 50.2% in 2005 compoared to 50.3% in 2004. Selling, general,
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and administrative expenses in 2005 increased to 28.0% of revenues
compared to 27.2% in 2004, primarily as a result of patent litigation
costs, accounting costs, ond incremental equity-based compensation
expense of $1.6 million. Our effective tox rate declined to 32.3% in 2005
from 34.0% in 2004, primarily due to increased benefits associated with
exira-terriorial income exclusions.

Below is @ summary of selected consolidated eamings information {in
thousands of dollars):

December 31, 2005 2004 % Chonge
Revenues $281,754  §244,291 14.4%
Cost of revenues 140,251 122,415 14.6%
Gross profil 141,503 123,876 14.2%
Gross margin percent 50.2% 50.3% {0.1)%
Research and development 22,284 19,577 13.8%
R&L as a percent of revenues 7.9% 7.9% —
Sales, general, ond administrative 78,810 66,920 17.8%
SGBA os a percent of revenues 28.0% 27.2% 0.8%
Operating income 40,409 37,379 8.1%
Orerating margin 14.3% 15.2% 0.9)%
Effective tox rate 32.3% 34.0% (1.7%

Income from continuing operations 30,722 20,106 52.8%
Income from operations of
discontinued operations,

net of taxes — 3,313 —
Gain on sale of disconfinued

operations, net of taxes — 8,083 —
Net income $ 30,722 % 31,502 (2.5)%
Diluted eamings per share—

continuing operations $0.85 $0.64 32.8%
Diluted eamings per share $0.85 $1.00 {15.0)%

Revenues. Revenues increased 14.4% to $281.8 million in 2005 from
$246.3 million in 2004, primarily due to wafer star-driven volume
increases in the Company’s copper advanced interconnect materils such
as cleans ond plating producs, increased SDS produdt sales volumes, and
strength in the Asion flat-ponel display market driving volume increases in
our odvanced high-purity materials packaging and dispensing systems.

Gross Profit. Gross profit increosed 14.2% to $141.5 million in 2005
trom $123.9 million in 2004, Gross margin decreased slightly to 50.2%
in 2005 from 50.3% in 2004. The increose in gross profit in 2005 was
driven primarily by the revenue volume increases discussed above, which
were partially offset by costs incurred to expedite shipments of cleans
praducts fo Asia to keep pace with increased demand in that region, and
alsc by increased costs associoted with operating parallel facilifies in
preparation for the move of our advanced high-purity materials packag-
ing and dispensing systems manufacluring aperations to a new focility,
and by slight shifts in product mix within our product portfolio. The facil-
ity move described previously was completed in the fourth quarter of
2005. Gross profit in 2004 included positive cost adjustments of $1.5
million related to o third-parly manufocturing agreement; however, this
was offset by approximately $1.6 million of excess and obsolete inventory
charges incurred during the year.

Research and Development Expenses. Research and development
{"RE&D") expenses increased 13.8% to $22.3 million in 2005 from $19.6
million in 2004. The increase was primarily relaled to new produd devel-
opment efforfs in our copper advanced inferconnect, SDS, and advanced
high-purity materials packaging and dispensing systems applications. R&D
spending remained consistent ot 7.9% of revenues in 2005 and 2004.
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Selling, General, and Adminisirative Expenses. Selling, generdl, and
odministrative (“SG8A'} expenses incrensed 17.8% to $78.8 million in 2005
from $66.9 million in 2004. SG8A was 28.0% of revenues in 2005 versus
27.2% of revenues in 2004. The primary drivers of the increosed SG8A
spending were patent litigofion costs relating to the patent infringement
claims {see Note 14 to the consolidated financial statements), increased
accounting costs, and expenses associated with restricted stock awards.

Operating Income. Operating income increased 8.1% o $40.4 million
in 2005 {representing 14.3% of revenues} from 337.4 million in 2004
{representing 15.2% of revenues} for a variety of factors as nofed above.

Interest Income. Interest income increosed to $7.3 million in 2005
from $3.5 miltion in 2004 due primarily fo higher invested balances from
cash generated from operations, cash genercted by the sale of discontin.
ved operations, and higher short-term investment returns due to Federal
Reserve interest rate increases.

inferest Expense. Interest expense decreased to $1.9 million in 2005
from $6.9 million in 2004, primarily as a result of the conversion of the
Company’s 5.25% convertible subordinated notes due November 15,
2006 (the “Notes”) into 5.183 million sheres of common stock during the
second quarter of 2005.

Impairment of Investments. The 2005 results include o $0.4 million charge
to recognize the impaiment of @ strotegic cost-basis investment, while the
2004 results include a $4.5 million charge to recognize the impairment of
0 separate strategic cost-basis investment,

Other Income, net. Other expense, net was $0.71 miliion in 2005 com-
pared fo other income, net of $1.0 million in 2004. The decrease is pri-
marily due fo $1.0 million of losses on foreign currency exchange in 2005
due to weakness in the Japanese Yen against the U.S. dollar and $0.3 mil-
lion of losses from an equity-method investee. Partially offsefting the losses
described above in 2005 were gains of $0.3 million on the sale of land in
Texos associated with the Company’s former maferials manufacturing site,
and $0.4 million related to the sale of certain other assets.

Provision for Income Taxes. Provision for income taxes was $14.7 mil-
lion in 2005 campared to $10.4 million in 2004. The increase in income
before taxes was the primary driver for the increase in the provision for
income taxes. The effective tax rate for 2005 was 32.3% compared o an
effective tax rate of 34.0% for 2004. The effective tox rate of 32.3% in
2005 differs from the Federal statutory rate of 35.0% primarily because of
state ond foreign income taxes, offset by ET! exclusion benefits. The 2004
effective tax rate of 34.0% differed from the Federal staiutory rale of
35.0%, primarily becouse of state and foreign income foxes, ETl exclusion
benefits, and the change in valuation allowance of deferred tax asseds.

Income from Operations of Discontinued Operations. Income from oper-
ations of discontinued operations in 2004, net of income taxes, was $3.3 mil-
lion. The results in 2005 do net include any effect from the discontinued
operations, since ll of the operations were sokd during 2004.

Gein on Soles of Discontinued Operotions. A gain of $8.1 million,
net of income taxes, wos recognized on the sales of discontinued oper-
ations in 2004. Each of the six businesses comprising disconfinued
operations was sold in 2004 at a price above existing net book value
of each individual business.

Liquidity and Capilal Resources

We assess liquidity in terms of our ability fo generate cash to fund our
operating and investing activities. Of particular importance fo the man-
agement of liquidity are cash flows generated by operating activifies, cash
used for capital expenditures, cash used to repurchase common stock,
and cush generated from the sale of common stock.




We manage our worldwide cash requiremenis considering the cost
effectiveness of the funds available from the many subsidiaries through
which we conduct our business. We believe that our existing cash and
cash equivalents and markeioble securities position of this time are suffi-
cient fo meet current and anticipated requirements for the foreseeable
future. We currently do not rely on debt or off-balance sheet financing
arrangements for our liquidity needs.

We confinue to invest in research and development to provide future
sources of revenue through the development of new products, as well as
through addifional uses for existing products. We consider R&D and the
development of new products and technologies an integral part of our
growth strategy and o core competence of the Company. Likewise, we con-
tinue to make copital expenditures in order to expand and modemize man-
ufacturing facilifies around the globe. Additionally, management considers,
on a continuing basis, potential acquisitions of strategic technologies and
businesses complementary to the Company’s current business.

A summary of our cash flows follows {in thousands):

Years Ended December 31, 2006 2005
Cash provided by {used for):
Operating activities $ 62,032 § 44,981
Investing activities 52,411 (55,520
Financing activifies (71,760) 6,509
Effects of exchange rote chonges on cash (38) (1,414)

Summary of Contractuel Obligations

Net cash provided by operating aciivities increased by $17,051 due
primarily to:

* Increase in net income of $9,239

* Increase in non-cash depreciation and amortization expense of $2,237

* Increase in non-cash equity-based compensafion expense of $7,138

* Increase in deferred income taxes of $6,525

* Decreose in cash used by operating or working capital accounts of
$4,165 due pamarily to increase in cash generated from accounts
payable, offset by increases in cash used for accounts receivable and
inventories (driven by the increase in sales)

Met cash provided by investing octivities increased by $107,931 due
primarily fo:
* Reduction in cosh paid for acquisitions of cost-basis investments of $5,117
* Reduction in cosh proceeds of $2,818 from sales of cost-basis investments
* Increse in cash proceeds of $104,798 due to sales and maturities
of marketable securities in excess of purchases

Net cosh used for financing activities increased by $78,26% due
primarily to:
* Increase in treosury stock purchases of $76,915 under our share
repurchase programs
* Decrense of $2,134 in proceeds from stock option exercises in 2006

On April 8, 2005, oll of the Company’s 5.25% converiible subordinated
notes were converted into 5,183,095 shares of common stock.

This is & summary of consolidoted debt, lease, purchase, and other obligations at December 31, 2006 [see Notes 4, 6, 9, and 14 of the consolidated

financial stoterments) {in thousands):

Payments Due by Period

Less than

Contractual obligations: Total I Year 1-3 Years 4.5 Years Thereafter
Capital leases $ 221 $ 48 $ 9 $ 78 $—
Operating leases 7,685 3,715 3,660 310 —
Purchase obligations:

Inventory purchases 2,238 2,238 — — —

Capital expenditures 357 357 — - —

Other 435 435 - — —
Totel purchase obligations 3,030 3,030 — — —
Standby Leters of Credit 914 764 — 150 —
Other long-term liobilities 354 — 354 — —
Total debt, lease, purchose, and

other long-term liability obligations $12,204 $7,557 $4,109 $538 $—
Of.Balonce Sheet Amongements were 14.4%, 15.3%, and 16.3%, respectively, of the Company’s rev-

The Company does not have any off-balance sheet amangements that
have, or are reosonably likely to have, a curent or future material effect on
its financial condition, changes in financial condition, results of operations,
liquidity, or copital resources.

Operations Outside the United States

For the years ended December 31, 2004, 2005, and 2004, sales out-
side the United States, including Asia and Europe, accounted for 68.1%,
67.1%, and 64.9%, respectively, of the Company's revenues. Sales to
Taiwan for the years ended December 31, 2004, 2005, and 2004 were
20.7%, 23.0%, and 22.2%, respectively, of the Company’s revenues.
Sales to Japan for the years ended December 31, 2006, 2005, and 2004

enues, Sales to South Korea for the years ended December 31, 2006,
2005, and 2004 were 11.2%, 9.7%, ond 7.4%, respectively, of the
Company's revenues. Management anticipates that the Company’s sales
outside the United States will continue o account for a significant percent-
oge of total revenues. The Company hos wholly-owned subsidiaries in
Toiwan, Singapore, China, Japan, and Germony where the Company
sells and services several product lines. The Company also has a wholly-
owned subsidiary in South Korea that manufactures, sells, ond distributes
materials delivery equipment and thin-film materials to the semiconductor
industry in South Koreo. In oddition, the Company has o wholly-owned
subsidiary in Belgium where it manufaciures and sells high purity materials
packaging produdts.
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Cautionary Statements Under the Private Securities
Lifigation Reform Act of 1995
Forward-Looking Statements

Disclosures included in this Annual Report contain “forward-looking
statements” within the meaning of Section 27A of the Securities Act of
1933, os amended, and Sedlion 21F of the Securities Exchange Act of
1934, as amended. Forward-looking statements may be idenfified by
words such as “onticipate,” “plan,” “believe,” “seek,” “estimate,”
"expect,” “could,” and words of similar meanings ond include, without
limitation, statements oboul the expected future business and financial
performance of ATMI such as financial projections, expectations for
demand and sales of new and existing products, customer and supplier
relationships, research and development programs, market and technol-
ogy opportunities, interncfional trends, business strategies, business
opportunities, objectives of management for future operations, micro-
electronic industry (including waler start} growth, and trends in the mar-
kets in which the Company participates. Forward-looking statements are
based on manogement’s current expectations and assumptions, which
are inherently subject to uncertainties, risks and changes in circumstances
that are difficult fo predict. Investors and others should consider the cau-
tionary statements and risk foctors discussed on Form 10-K. Purchases of
shares pursuant fo the Company's share repurchase programs moy be
subject fo prevailing morket prices for the Company’s common stock,
availability of shares for public or private purchase, other market condi-
tions, and altemative uses and applications for the Company’s cash that
may arise from fime to time. Actual outcomes and results may differ mate-
rially from these expectations and assumpfions due o changes in politi-
cal, economic, business, competitive, market, regulatory, and other
factors. ATMI undertakes no abligation fo update publicly or review any
forward-locking stotements, whether as a result of new information,
future developments, or otherwise.

Quantitative and Qualitative Disclosures about Market Risk
Inferest Rafe Risk

As of December 31, 2006, the Company’s cash and cash equivalents
and marketable securities included money market securities, corporate
and municipal bond obligations, and commercial paper. As of December 31,
2004, an increase of 100 basis points in interest rates would reduce the
fair value of the Company's marketable securities portfolic by approxi-
mately $0.9 million. Conversely, o reduction of 100 basis points in infer-
est rates would increcse the fair value of the Company's marketable
securities portfolio by approximately $0.6 million.

Foreign Currency Exchange Risk

A substantial portion of the Company’'s sales are denominated in U.S.
dollars and os a result, the Company has relatively minimal exposure to
foreign currency exchange risk with respect o sales mode. Approximately
10% of the Company’s revenues for the year ended December 31, 2006
were denominated in Jopanese Yen (“JPY"), but the product is sourced in
US. dollars. Management periodically reviews the Company's exposure
lo currency fluctuations. This exposure may change over time as business
praclices evolve and could have o material effect on the Company’s
financial results in the future. The Company currently uses forward
exchange contracts to hedge certain JPY exposures, but does not use any
other derivative financial instruments for trading or speculative purposes.
At December 31, 2006, ATM! had $12.3 million notional amount of
foreign exchange contracts, which are being used to hedge recorded
foreign-denominated assets, which will be setiled in JPY. Holding other
varicbles constant, if there were a 10% odverse change in foreign
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exchange rates for the JPY, the fair market value of the contracls outstand-
ing at December 31, 2006 would decrease by approximately $1.4 mil-
lion (but would be expected to be offset by foreign exchange gains on the
omounts being hedged). The effect of an immediate 10% change in other
toreign exchange rates would not be expected to have o material impaoct
on the Company’s future operating results or cash flows.

Changes in Market Risk
There hove been no material quantitative changes in market risk exposure
between the fiscol years ended December 31, 2005 and December 31, 2006.

Controls and Procedures
Conclusion Regarding the Effectiveness of Disclosure Controls
and Procedures

Our management, with the participation of our Chief Executive Officer
(“CEQ" and Chief Financial Officer (“CFO"), has evoluated the effective-
ness of our disclosure controls and procedures {as such term is defined in
Rules 130-15(e) and 15d-15(e) under the Exchange Acf) as of the end of the
period covered by this Annual Report. There ore inherent limitations fo the
effectiveness of any system of disclosure controls and procedures, including
the possibility of human eror and the circumvention or overriding of the con-
trols and procedures. Accordingly, even effective disclosure confrols and pro-
cedures can only provide reasonable assurance of achieving their confrol
objectives. Bosed upon our evaluation, our CEQ and CFO concluded that
our disclosure controls and procedures were effective fo provide reasonable
assurance that information required to be disclosed by us in the reports thai
we file or submit under the Securities Exchonge At of 1934 is recorded,
processed, summarized, and reporied within the fime periods specified in the
applicable rules and forms, and that it is accumulated and communicated
to our management, including our CEQ ond CFO, as oppropriate, fo allow
timely decisions regarding required disclosure.

Manogement's Report on Internal Control over Financial Reporting

Qur management is responsible for establishing and mairtaining ade-
quate internal conirol over financial reporting. Intemal control over finan-
cial reporting is a process designed o provide reasonable assurance
regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of
financiol stotements for extemal reporting purposes in eccordance with
accounting principles generolly accepted in the United Stotes of Americo.
Because of its inherent limitations, intemal control over financiel repor-
ing may not prevent or delect misstatements. Our management has
assessed the effectiveness of our intemal control over financial reporting
as of December 31, 2006. In making its assessment, management has
used the criteria sef forth by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizations
{COSQ) of the Treadway Commission in Intemal Control—Integrated
Framework. Qur management concluded that, based on its assessment,
ourintemal control over financial reporting was effective as of December 31,
2006. Our monagement’s assessment of the effectiveness of our intemal
control over financial reporting as of December 31, 2006 hos been
audited by Emst & Young LLP. an independent registered public account-
ing firm, os stated in their attestalion report on management’s assessment
of internal control over financial reporting, which is included in this
Annual Report.

There has been no change in our internal control over financiol repori-
ing during the quarter ended December 31, 2006 that has materially
affected, or is reasonably likely to materially affect, our intemal control
over finonciol reporting.




Stock Performance

The following graph compores the cumulative total stockholder return on the Company’s Common Stock with the return on the Total Retumn Index
for the Nosdag Stock Market {US.) and the Nasdaqg Electronic Components Stock Index. The measurement assumes o $100 investment as of
December 31, 2002 with al! dividends, if any, reinvested. The data presented are on on annual basis for the five years ended on December 31, 2006.

The performance shown is not necessarily indicative of future performance.
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TOTAL RETURN CALCULATION
Relative Stock Pedformance
Nasdoq Electronic Nasdaq Electronic
Date Nasdag (U.5.) Components ATMI Nasdag {U.S.) Components ATMI
12/31/02 450,779 1070.587 $18.52 100.00 100.00 100.00
12/31/03 674,009 2060.187 $23.21 149 52 192.44 125.32
¥2/31/04 733,509 1629.349 $22.53 162.72 152.19 121.65
12/30/05 749.103 1614.603 $27.97 166.18 150.81 151.03
12/29/06 823.013 1775.604 $30.53 182.58 145.85 164.85
PRICE RANGE OF COMMON STOCK
Fiscal Year Ended December 31, 2004
High Low
1st Quarter $34.42 $27.66
2nd Quarter 33.05 22.86
3rd Quarter 30.60 21.72
4th Quarter 35.30 28.31
Fiscal Year Ended December 31, 2005
High Low
Ist Quarter $28.24 $20.53
2nd Quarter 30.75 21.95
3rd Quarter 33.62 28.58
4th Quarter 32.06 24.06

As of March 12, 2007, there were approximately 14,900 shareholders of the common stock.
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Consolidated Balance Sheets

(in thousands, except per share daia)

December 31, 2006 2005
ASSETS
Current assets:
Cash ond cash equivalents $ 73596 3% 30,951
Marketable securities, current portion 131,091 178,900
Accounts receivable, net of allowances of $666 and $695, respectively 55,867 47,125
Inventories, net 47,339 39,850
Income toxes receivable 3,500 -
Delerred income taxes 8,748 8,875
Prepaid expenses ond other current ossets 12,073 12,800
Total current assets 332,234 318,500
Propery, plant, and equipment, net 92,719 82,821
Gooduwill 13,734 13,681
Other intangibles, net 20,669 24,088
Marketable securities, less current portion 14,379 46,286
Other long-term assets 14,302 14,459
Total assets $488,037 $499,836

LIABILITIES AND STOCKHOLDERS’ EQUITY
Current ligbilifies:

Accounts poyable $ 20,144 § 11,910
Accrued liabilities 15,767 21,244
Accrued salories and related benefits 11,813 8,423
Income taxes poyable 1,186 102
Other current liabilities 1,962 1,975
Total current liabilities 50,872 43,656
Deferred income taxes, non-cyrrent 1,165 3,13
Other long-term libilities 504 329

Commitments and confingencies (Notes 4, 6, 9, and 14)

Stockholders’ equity:
Preferred stock, par volue $.01: 2,000 shares authorized; none issued -— -
Common stock, par value $.01: 100,000 shares authorized; 38,304 and 37,877

issued and 34,710 and 37,446 outstanding in 2006 and 2005, respectively 383 379
Additional paid-in capital 389,346 347,393
Deferred equity-based compensation — (5,508)
Treasury stock af cost (3,594 shares in 2006 and 431 shares in 2005) (100,305) (12,118)
Retained eamings 140,434 100,473
Accumulated other comprehensive income 5,638 2,099

Total stockholders’ equity 435,496 452,720
Total liabilities and stockholders’ equity $488,037  $499,836

See accompanying nofes.
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Consolidated Statements of Income

(in thousands, except per share data)

Year Ended December 31, 2006 2005 2004
Revenues $325,913 $281,754  $246,291
Cost of revenues 162,530 140,251 122,415
Gross profit 163,383 141,503 123,876
Operating expenses:
Research and development 26,217 22,284 19,577
Selling, general, and administrative 90,149 78,810 66,920
Total operating expenses 116,366 101,094 86,497
Operating income 47,017 40,409 37379
Interest income 8,353 7,269 3,485
Inferest expense {29) {1,862} (6,927)
Impairment of investments (260) (379) {4,471}
Other income (loss), net 775 {53) 998
Income before income taxes 55,856 45,384 30,464
Provision for income taxes 15,895 14,662 10,358
Income from continuing operafions 39,961 30,722 20,106
Income from operations of discontinued operations, net of income tax provision of §1,784 - — 3,313
Gain on sales of discontinued operations, net of income tax provision of $4,352 - — 8,083
Nef income $ 39,961 $ 30,722 $ 31,502
Basic eomings per share:
Earnings per share from confinuing operafions SN $0.86 $0.64
Income per share from operations of discontinued operations - — 0
Gain on sales of discontinued operafions - - 0.24
Income per common share $1.11 $0.86 $1.00
Weighted-average shares outstonding 36,083 35,707 31,247
Diluted eamings per share:
Eornings per shore from operations of continuing operations $1.08 $0.85 $0.64
Income per share from operations of discontinued operations - — 0.10
Gain on sole of discontinved operations —_ — 0.24
Income per common share $1.08 $0.85 $1.00
Weighted-average shares outstanding 36,859 36,276 31,650

See accompanying notes.
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Consolidated Statements of Stockholders’ Equity

Accumulated
Deferred Other
Equity- Compre-
Additional  Bosed hensive
(in thousands) Common  Paid-in  Compen-  Treasury Retained Income
Stock  Copital  safion Stack Eamings (Loss) Total
Balance at December 31, 2003 $310 $213314 § — % — § 38249 $2900 $254,773
Issuance of 330 shares of common stock pursuant
to the exercise of employee stock options 3 6,092 - — — - 8,095
Issuance of 115 shares of common stock pursuant
1o the employee stock purchase plan 1 2,253 — — - — 2,254
Equity-based compensation — 216 373 - — — 589
Issvance of 60 shares of restricted stock 1 1,415 (1,418) - — — —
Income tax benefits from equity-based compensation — 926 - —_ - — 926
Net income — — - — 31,502 — 31,502
Reclassification adjustment for realized gain on
cvoilable-for-so,e securities sold (net of fox provision of $79) — — - — - (129} {129)
Unrealized loss on ovailoble-for-sale securifies
(net of tax benefit of $606) — - — — - (989) (989)
Cumulative translation odjustment — — — — - 3,077 3,077
Comgrehensive income 33,461
Balonce at December 31, 2004 315 224216 (1,043) — 69,751 4,859 298,098
Issuarice of 814 shares of common stock pursuant
to the exercise of employes stock opfions 8 16,022 _ — - — 16,030
Issuance of 83 shares of commen stock pursuant
to the employee stock purchase plon 1 1,731 — —_ - — 1,732
Issuance of 20 shares of commen stock pursuant
to exercise of warranfs — 235 - — - _ 235
Issuance of 5,183 shares of common stock pursuant
to zonversion of notes 52 115980 - — - — 116,032
Purchase of 431 treasury shares — — — (12118 — — (1218
Issuance of 299 shares of restricted stock 3 6,686 16,689} — — — —
Equity-based compensation — — 2,226 — — - 2,224
Income tox benefits from equity-based compensation — 2,523 - - — - 2,523
Net income — — - — 30,722 — 30,722
Reclassification adjustment for realized loss on
uvuilcble-for—sale securities sold {net of tax benefit of $64) — — - — - 13 113
Unrealized gain on available-for-sale securities
{net of tax provision of $31) — — — — -— 53 53
Cumulafive translafion adjustment — — - — — {2926 (2,924}
Comprehensive income 27 962
Balance at December 31, 2005 379 367,393 (5,506) {12,118) 100,473 2,099 452,720
Issuance of 663 shares of common stock pursuant
fo the exercise of employee stock options 6 14,087 - — - — 14,093
Issuance of B5 shares of common stock pursuont
to the employee stock purchase plan 1 1,770 - - - - 1,7
Purchase of 3,163 treasury shares - - — (88,187) - — (88,187}
Reclassification of deferreg equity-based compensation - {5,506) 5,506 - - - -
Equity-based compensation - 2,364 — - — — 9,364
Income tax benefits from equity-based compensation - 2,235 - - - - 2,235
Other (3) 3 - - - - -
Net income - — — - 39,961 -_ 39,961
Reclessification adjustment for realized loss on
available-for-sale securities sold (net of fax benefit of $321) - —_— — - - 547 547
Unrealized gain on available-for-sale securifies
[net of tax provision of $105) - - — - - 178 178
Cumulative translation adjustment - - - — — 2814 2,814
Comprehensive income 43,500
Balonce at December 31, 2006 $383 $389,346 § — ${100,305) $140,434 $5,638 $435,4%6

See accompanying notes.
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Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows

{in thousands)
Year Ended December 31, 2006 2005 2004
Operdfing activities
Net income $ 39,961 $ 30722 $ 31,502
Less: income from discontinued operations - — 11,396
Income from continuing operations 39,961 30,722 20,106
Adjustments 1o reconcile income from confinuing operations fo cash
provided by operating activities from continuing operafions:
Depreciation and amarizafion 20,764 18,527 17,250
Provision for inventory obsolescence 1,480 405 1,606
Deferred income toxes {2,323) 4,202 4,130
Income tax benefits from stock option exercises 2,235 2,523 924
Excess tax benefit from share-besed orrangements (660) — —
Stock compensation expense 2364 2,226 589
Impoirment of invesiments 260 379 4,471
Loss from equity-method investee 381 310 —
Other (222) {956) (385)
Changes in operating assets and liabilities:
Accounts receivable {7,980) (4,294) {5,266)
Inventories (7,749) (2,766) {14,960)
Other assets 2,579 4,153 {9,908)
Accounts payable 8,095 (5,026) 4,431
Accrued expenses {1,703 (4,450) 11,891
Income toxes {2,445) {30) {1,379)
Other liabilities 15 (944) 2,110
Cosh provided by operating acfivities of continuing operations 62,032 44,981 33,612
Cash used by operafing octivities of disconfinued operations - — (8,220)
Net cash provided by operafing activities 62,032 44,981 25,392
Investing activities
Copital expenditures (27,560) (28,4601 {16,785)
Proceeds from the sale of property, plant, and equipment 362 428 -
Acquisitions and other cost-basis ond equity-basis investments (2,578) (7,695} (2,134)
Proceeds from the sale of a cost-basis invesiment 298 3114 —
Purchases of marketable securities (179,901) {150,440} (210,746)
Proceeds from sales or meturities of marketable securities 261,790 127,531 109,880
Other — — 150
Cash used by investing activities of ¢ontinuing aperations 5241 (55,520 (119,637)
Cash provided by investing activities of discontinued oparations - — 94,776
Net cosh provided (used) by investing octivities 5241 (55,520} {24,851}
Financing activifies :
Payments on loens, nates poyable, and capital lease obligations (92) 212 (1,033)
Purchases of treasury stock (88,19) {11,276} —
Proceeds from exercise of stock options, warrants, and employee stock purchase plan shares 15,863 17,997 8,349
Excess tax benefit from share-based payment amangements 660 — —
Net cosh provided by financing ecfivities of continuing operations (71,760) 6,509 7316
Effects of exchange rate ¢changes on cash and cash equivolents {38) (1,414) 3,077
Increase {decrease) in cash and cash equivalents from continuing operations 42,645 (5,444) (75,632)
Increase in cash and cosh equivalents from discontinued operations - — 84,556
Net increase {decrease] in cash and cash equivalents 42,645 (5,444) 10,924
Cosh and cosh equivalents, beginning of year 30,951 36,395 25471
Cosh and cash equivalents, end of year $ 73,59 $ 30,951 $ 36,395
SUPPLEMENTAL DISCLOSURES OF CASH FLOW INFORMATION:
Nen-cash conversion of subordinated notes to equity s - $115,000 § —
Non-cash conversion of unamortized debt issuance costs to equity $ - $ {1,333 $ -
Non-cash conversion of unpaid interest accrual to equity reloting to subordinated notes $ - § 2,365 $ -
Cash interest paid $ 29 $ 34 § 613
Cash income foxes paid $ 18,830 $ 7,852 $ 7,230

See accompanying notes.
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

1. ORGANIZATION AND SUMMARY OF
SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Description of Business

AT {the “Company,” “ATML,” or “we”} befieves it is a leading supplier
of high performance materials, materials packaging, and materials deliv-
ery systems used worldwide in the maonufacture of microelectronic
devices. ATMI targets both semiconductor and flat-panel display manu-
facturers, whose products form the foundation of microelectronics tech-
nology rapidly proliferating through the information technology,
automotive, communication, and consumer products industries. The mar-
ket for microelectronics devices is growing and continually changing,
which drives demand for new products and technotogies at lower cost.
ATMI's objective is to meet the demands of microelectronic manufactur-
ers with solutions that maximize the efficiency of their manufocturing
processes ond minimize the fime to ramp new processes and deliver new
products. ATMI's customers include many of the leading semiconductor
and flat-panel disploy manufacturers in the world who farget leading-
edge technologies.

Consalidation

The accounts of ATMI and all of its subsidiaries are included in the
consolidated financial statements. Al significant intercompany accounts
and transactions are elimingted in consolidation.

Estimates

The: preparation of the consolidated financial statements in conformity
with accounfing principles generally occepted in the United States
requires managemenl fo make esfimates and assumptions that affect the
reported amounts of assets and liabilities, and the disclosure of contin-
gent assefs and liabilities, ot December 31, 2006 and 2005, and the
reporfed amounts of revenues and expenses during the years ended
December 31, 2006, 2005, and 2004, respectively. Actual amounts
could differ from those estimates.

Variable Interest Entity

In July 2005, ATMI purchased 30% of the outstanding common stock
of Anji Microelectronics Co., Lid. {"Anji"}, for approximately $7.7 million,
including direct acquisition costs. Anji is in the development siage of
researching and developing advanced semiconductor materials and has
its primary operations in Shanghai, China. Management has determined
that Anji is o voriable interest entity, in occordance with Financiol
Accounting Standards Board {*FASB"} Interprelation No. 46(R],
“Consolidation of Variable Interest Enfities” ("FIN No. 46{R)"). ATM! is
accounting for this investment using the equity method of accounting, and
we ircluded our share of Anji’s losses in the consolidated statements of
income from the invesiment date. ATMI records its share of Anii's eamings
or losses using the most current financial information available from Anji,
which is one month behind ATMI's normal closing date. ATMI's maximum
exposure to foss os a result of its investment in Anji is $7.0 million of
December 31, 2004. The value of the investment in Aniji is included in the
consolidated balance sheets under the caption “Cther long-term assets.”
The camying value of ATMIs investment in Anji exceeds ATMI's share of
Anji's net assets by approximately $6.1 million. The carrying value of
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ATMI's investment in Anji represents the cash paid, less our share of the
losses, and per an independent valuation obtained, the excess purchase
price over the underlying net assets is deemed to be goodwill.

Revenue Recognition and Accounts Receivable

We recognize revenue in accordance with SEC Staff Accounting
Bulletin No. 104, "Revenue Recognition” {*SAB No. 104"), which
requires that four basic criteria must be met before revenue can be rec-
ognized: {1} persuasive evidence of on arrangement exists; (2} delivery
has occurred or services have been rendered; (3} the fee is fixed or deter-
minable; and (4] collectibility is reasonably assured. Revenues from prod-
uct soles are generally recognized upon delivery to a common carrier
when terms are FOB origin and upon receipt by a customer when terms
are FOB destination. In instances where final acceptance of equipment is
specified by the purchase agreement, revenue is deferred unfil all accept-
ance criterio have been satisfied. We accrue for sales retums, warranty
costs, ond other allowances based on a current evaluation of our experi-
ence based on stated terms of the transactions.

The Company uses an exclusive contract manufocturer [Matheson Tri-
Gas), which is also on exclusive distribution partner, for the manufaciure
and distribution of its SDS products [the “Licensed Products”). Under the
terms of the manufaciuring agreement, ATM! reiains the right to manu-
facture 25% of all Licensed Products, while the contract manufacturer has
the right to manulacture 75% of all Licensed Products. Upon complefion
of manutacture, ATMI purchases all Licensed Products produced by the
contract manufocturer. Under the terms of the distribution agreement,
ATMI receives payment from the distributor based upon a formula which
is dependent on the sale price oblained by the distributor to its customer,
ATMI recognizes revenue from the sale of Licensed Products 1o this distri-
bufion partner when the distributor sells the Licensed Products to its cus-
tomers, because that is when the sales price becomes fixed and
determinable by the Company. During the vears ended December 31,
2006, 2005, and 2004, ATMI recognized $77.5 million, $67.5 million,
and $63.9 million of revenues from this distributor, respectively.

Billings to customers for shipping and handling are included within rev-
enves. Costs incurred for shipping and handling of products are charged
to cost of revenues. Credit is extended to customers based on an evalua-
tion of each customer’s financial condition; generally, collateral is not
required. Revenues are presented in the consolidated financial statements net
of sales allowances ond discounts. Accounts receivable are presented in the
consolidated financial statements net of the allowance for doubiful accounts.,

Allowance for Doubtful Accounts

The allowance for doubfful accounis is established to represent our
best estimate of the net realizable value of the outstanding accounis
receivable balances. We esfimate our allowance for doubHul accounts
based on past due amounts and historical write-off experience, as well as
trends and faclors surrounding the credit risk of specific customers. In an
effort 1o identify cdverse frends, we perform pericdic credit evaluations of
our customers and ongoing occount balance reviews and agings of
receivables. Amounts are considered past due when payment has not
been received within the time frame of the credit ferms extended. Write-
offs are charged directly against the allowance for doubtful accounts ond
occur only affer all collection efforts have been exhausted.




Concentrations of Credit Risk

Financial instruments that potentially subject the Company to signifi-
cani concentrafions of credif risk consist primarily of cash and cash equiv-
alents, marketoble securities, accounts receivable, and currency forward
exchange contracts. The Company invests its cash and cash equivalents
and marketable securities (primarily in quction rate securities), other cor-
porate obligations, and U.S. Government and municipal debt oblige-
tions. The Company hod amounts due from two customers that

accounted for approximately 38% of accounts receivable at December 31,
2006 and 2005, respectively.

Research and Development
Costs associated with the development of new products and improvements
to existing products are charged to expense as incurred.

Cosh and Cash Equivalents and Markelable Securities

Highly liquid investments with maturities of three months er less, when
purchased, are classified as cash and cash equivalents. Investments in
publicly traded securities with maturifies greater than three months, when
purchased, are classified as marketable securities.

We account for marketable securities in accordance with Statement of
Financial Accounfing Standords ("SFAS") No. 115, *Accounting for
Cerfain Investments in Debt and Equily Securifies” as amended by FASB
Staff Position FAS 115-1 and FAS 124-1, “The Meaning of Other-Than-
Temporary Impairment and lts Application to Certain Invesiments,” [“FSP
115-17). FSP 115-} provides guidance on determining when investments
in certain debt and equity securities are considered impaired, whether
that impairment is other-than-temporary, and on measuring such impair-
ment loss. FSP 115-1 also includes accounting considerations subse-
quent fo the recognition of other-than-lemporary impairment losses and
requires cerfain disclosures about unrealized losses that have not been
recognized as other-than-temporary impairments. All of the Company's
marketable securities are classified as available-for-sale as of the balance
sheet date and are reported ot fair value, based on quoted market prices,
with unrealized gains and losses included in stockholders’ equity as a
component of accumulated other comprehensive income, net of applice-
ble toxes. Morketable securities that are in o temporarily impaired posi-
tion, where manogement hos the ability and infent to hold until
anticipated recovery or maturity, are classified as either current or non-
cuirent bosed on the remaining contractual malurity of the security. Those
securilies in ¢ femporarily impaired position with contractual maturities
greater than one year are classified as non-current,

At December 31, 2006, the Company holds time deposits of $10.0
million in South Korea which are classified as marketable securifies.

At December 31, 2005, the Company held a $3.6 million time deposit
in Germany, which is classified as o cash equivalent. Additionally, ot
December 31, 2005, the Company held fime deposits of $5.9 million
ond $2.4 million in South Korea and Belgium, respectively, which are
classified as morketable securities.

Non-marketable Equity Securities

Wa selectively invest in non-markefoble equity securifies of private
companies, which range from early-stage companies that are often still
defining their strategic direction fo more mature companies whose products

or technologies may directly support an ATMI product or initiative, At
December 31, 2006, the canying value of our portfolio of strategic
investments in non-marketable equity securities fotaled $11.8 million
($10.2 million in 2005), of which $4.8 million are accounted for af cost
{$2.8 million in 2005}, and $7.0 million ore accounted for using the
equity method of accounting ($7.4 million in 2005). Non-markefable
equity securifies are included in the consolidated balance sheets under
the capfion “Other long-term ossets.”

We review our investments quarterly for indicotors of impairment; how-
ever, for non-marketable equity securities, the impairment analysis
requires significant judgment to identify events or circumstances that
would likely have o significant adverse effect on the fair value of the
investment. The indicotors that we use lo identify those events or circum-
stances include (o) the investee’s revenue and eamings trends relative to
predefined milestones and overall business prospects; (b) the technolog-
ical feasibility of the investee’s products and technologies; (¢} the general
markel conditions in the investee’s industry or geographic areq, including
adverse regulatory or economic changes; (d} foctors reloted to the
investee’s ability to remain in business, such as the investee's liquidity,
and the rate at which the investee is using its cash; and (g) the investee’s
receipt of additionol funding at @ lower valuation.

Investments idenfified as having an indicator of impairment are subject to
further analysis to defermine if the invesiment is other than temporarily
impaired, in which case we write the investment down to its impaired value.
When an investee is not considered viable from a financial or technelogical
point of view, we write down the entire investment since we consider the esfi-
mated fair market value to be nominal. If an investee obtains additional
funding ot a voluation lower than our camying amount, or requires a new
round of equity funding to remain in operation and the new funding does
not appear imminent, we presume that the investment is other than fem-
porarily impaired, unless specific focts and circumstanices indicote otherwise,
Impairments of investments in our portfolio of non-marketable equity securi-
ties were approximately $0.3 million in 2006 ($0.4 million in 2005 and
$4.5 million in 2004), and are presented separately in the consolidated
statements of income as “Impairment of investments.”

Inventories

Inventories are stoted ot the lower of cost or market, using the first-in,
first-out (“FIFO") method, and we write down the value of inventories for
estimated obsolescence ond excess quaniities on hand and for known
odverse conditions and circumstances.

Property, Plant, and Equipment

Property, plont, and equipment are recorded at cost, net of accumu-
loted depreciation. We depreciate our property, plant, and equipment
using the straight-line method over the estimated useful life of the asset,
The depreciation periods used are as follows: buildings, 15 to 35 vears;
machinery and equipment, 3 o 15 years; furniture ond fixtures, 5 years;
and leasehold improvements are amortized over the lesser of the lease
term or estimated useful life. ATMI uses accelerated depreciation methods
for tax purposes where appropriafe.
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Income Toxes

We must make certoin estimates and judgments in determining income
tox expense for financiol statement purpases. These estimates and judgments
occcur in the calculation of tax credits, fox benefits, dedudtions, andin the cal-
culation of certin tax assets and liabilifies, which arise from differences in
the timing of recognition of revenue and expense for tax and financil state-
ment purposes. Significant changes o these estimates may result in an
increose or decrease Jo our fax provision in a subsequent period.

We must assess the fikelihood thai we will be able fo recover our
deferred tax assets. f recovery is not likely, we must increase our provi-
sion for taxes by recording o valuation allowance against the deferred tax
assets thot we estimate will not ultimafely be recoverable. We believe thot
a substantial maojority of the gross deferred tax assets will ultimately be
recovered. However, should there be a change in our obility to recover
our deferred tox assets, our tax provision would increase in the period in
which we determined that the recovery was not likely.

In addition, the calculation of our tax liabilities involves dealing with
uncerainties in the applicofion of complex tox regulations. We recognize
liabilities for anficipated tax issues in the U.S. and other fax jurisdictions
based on our estimate of whether, and the extent to which, additicnal tox
payments are probable. If we ultimately determine that poyment of these
amounfs is unnecessary, we reverse the liability and recognize a tax ben-
efit during the period in which we determine that the liability is no longer
necessary. We record an additional charge in our provision for faxes in
the period in which we determine that the recorded tax liability is less than
we expect the ultimate assessment to be. For a discussion of current tax
matters, see Note 10.

Fair Values of Financial Instruments Other than Derivatives

The Company's financial instruments consist primarily of cash and
cash equivalents, marketable securities, accounts receivable, accounts
payable, and occrued liabilities. Morketoble securities are accounted for
at fair value using quoted market prices for those securities. All other
financial instruments are accounted for on a historical cost basis, which
due jo the nature of these instruments, approximates fair value at the
balance sheet dates.

Derivatives

ATMI enfers info derivative financial instruments solely to profect net
income against the impact of the translation into US. dollars of certain for-
eign exchange-denominoted transactions. These financial instruments are in
the form of forward foreign currency exchange contracts, and are not entered
into for trading purposes. ATMI uses only commonly iraded instruments.

We account for derivafive insiruments under SFAS No. 133,
‘Accounting for Derivative Instruments and Hedging Activities,” as
amended. SFAS No. 133, as amended, requires the Company to recog-
nize these instruments as either assets or lisbilities on the balance sheet
and measure them ot fair value.

We recognize all derivative financial instruments, such os foreign
exchange confracts, in the consolidated financia! statements, at fair volue,
regerdless of the purpose or intent for holding the instrument. Derivatives
that are entered into for risk management purposes, and are not designated
as hedges, are recorded of their fair market values, with changes in fair mar-
ket value being recognized in income. The fair values of forward foreign cur-
rency exchange contracts are esfimated bosed on market prices obtained
from an independent dedler or market quotes. Such quotes represent the
esfimated amount the Company would receive or pay 1o terminate the
agreements foking into consideration cument rates.
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Goodwill and Other Intangible Assets

We account for goodwill in accordance with SFAS No. 142, “Goodwill
and Other Intangible Assets.” At December 31, 2006, the Company had
$13.7 million of goodwill ($13.7 million in 2005), representing the cost
of acquisitions in excess of fair values assigned to the underlying net
assets of acquired companies. In accordance with SFAS No. 142, good-
will is not amortized, but is subject to annual impairment testing. The
assessment of goodwill involves the estimation of the fair value of report-
ing wnits, as defined by SFAS No. 142. Management completed this
annual assessment during the fourth quarter of 2004 based on the best
information availoble as of the date of the assessment, which incorpo-
rated manogement’s assumptions about expected future cash flows.
Bosed on this ossessment, there was no goodwill impairment as of
Dacember 31, 2006. Future cash flows can be affected by changes in the
global economy and local economies, changes in the microelectronics
industry, changes in technology, and the execution of management's
plans. There can be no assurance that fulure events will not result in
impairment of goodwill.

We review the carrying values of long-lived assets, including infangible
assefs, for impairment when facts or circumstances indicate thot the car-
rying value of long-lived assets may be impaired. Factors that we consider
in deciding when to perform an impairment review include significant
under-performance of a product line in relafion to expectations, signifi-
cant negative industry or economic trends, and significant changes or
planned changes in our use of the ossets. An impairment review consists
of a specific evaluation of the assets, or groups of assefs, fo determine
whether any impairment exists by comparing the estimofed future undis-
counted cash flows associated with the asset 1o the asset’s carrying
amount. If the review indicates that the asset is impaired, then an impair-
ment loss representing the difference between the osset's fair value and
its carrying volue is recognized.

We amortize our patents and other amortizable intangible assefs over
their estimated useful lives. All omorfizable intangible assets are amor-
tized using the straight-line method over the estimated useful lives of the
assets, ranging from 3 1o 14 years.

Translation of Foreign Currencies

For most intemational operations, local currencies are considered the
funclional currency of the entity. Revenue and expense accounts ore frons-
lated af the average exchange rate for the year, while asset and liability
accounts are Iranslated at the exchange rate in effect ot the balance sheet
date. Equily accounts are tronsloted ot historical exchange rates.
Resulting translation adjustments are recorded os a seporate component
of accumulated other comprehensive income.

Equity-Based Compensation

Effective January 1, 2006, the Company adopted SFAS No. 123
(Revised 2004), “Share-Based Payment” {“SFAS No. 123{R})") ond related
inferpretations which require the measurement and recognition of com-
pensation expense for all equity-based payments to employees and direc-
tors based on their fair value. Prior to 2008, the Company accounted for
stock options using the infrinsic value method under Accounting Principles
Board Opinion No. 25 {"APB 25%), “Accounting for Stock Issued to
Employee,” as permitted under SFAS No. 123, “Accounting for Stock-
Bosed Compensation.” Accordingly, equity-based compensation expense
was not recognized in nef income os the exercise price of options gronted
was equal to the market value of the stock on the date of grant. The
Company provided pro formo net income and eamings per share




amounts as if equity-based compensation expense had been recognized
based on fair value in the footnotes, as required.

The Company elected the medified-prospective-transition method as
permitted by SFAS No. 123(R} and, therefore, prior periods have not been
restated to reflect the impact of equity-bosed compensation expense.
Equity-bosed compensation expense is recorded for all unvested stock
options af January 1, 2006 and those subsequently granted, and is
recognized on a straight-line basis over the stated vesting period.

In accordance with FSP No, FAS 123(R}-3, “Transition Election Related
fo Accounting for the Tax Effects of Share-Based Payment Awards,” we
have made a one-time election to use the alternative simplified method
for calculoting the pool of excess tax benefits available to absorb tax defi-
ciencies recognized subsequent to the adoption of SFAS No. 123(R) and
reparted in the consolidated statemenis of cash flows. Prior to the adop-
tion of SFAS No. 123(R}, the Company presented tax benefits resulfing
from equity-based compensation as operafing cash flows in the consoli-
dated statements of cash flows. SFAS No. 123(R) requires that cash flows
resulting from tax deductions in excess of recognized compensation cost
be clossified os financing cash flows.

As a result of adopting SFAS No. 123(R} on January 1, 2008, the
Company's income before income taxes for the year ended December 31,
2006 is $6.0 million lower, and net income for the year ended December
31, 2006 is $4.0 million lower, than if it had continued to account for
equity-based compensation under APB 25. Bosic and diluted eamings
per share for the year ended December 31, 2006 are $0.11 and $0.11
lower, respectively, than if the Company had continued 1o account for
equity-based compensation under APB 25.

This table, for the years ended December 31, 2005 and 2004, illustrates
the effect on net income and eamings per share if the foir value recogni-
fion provisions of SFAS No. 123 had been applied fo all outstonding and
unvested awards in the prior years {in thousands, except per share data):

Year Ended December 31, 2005 2004
Net income, as reported $30,722  $31,502
Add: Total stock-based employee

compensafion expense included

in reported net income,

net of tox effect 1,506 385
Deduct: Total stock-based

employee compensation expense

determined under fair-value-based

method for all awards, net of tox effect {7,580)  {8,404)
Pro forma net income $24,648 $23,483
Income {loss) per share:

Basic—as reported $086  $1.01

Basic—pro forma $0.69  $0.75

Diluted—as reported $085  $1.00

Diluted-pro forma $0.68  $0.74

Recently Issued Accounting Pronouncements

in September 2005, the FASB issued a Proposed Statement of Financial
Accounting Standards which amends FASB Statement No. 128, “Eamings
per Share.” The proposed statement is intended to clarify guidance on the
computation of eamings per share for certain items such as mandatorily
convertible instruments, the treasury stock method, and confingently

issuoble shares. We have evaluated the proposed statement as presently
drafted and have determined thot if adopted in its current form it would
not have a significant impact on the computation of our eamings per share.

In September 2006, the FASB issued SFAS No. 157, “Fair Value
Measurements,” SFAS No. 157 provides enhanced guidance for using fair
value to measure asseis and ligbilifies. The standard dlso responds to
investors’ requests for expanded information about the extent fo which
companies measure assets and liabilities at fair value, the information
used to measure fair valve, and the effect of fair value measurements on
eamings. The standard will apply whenever other standards require {or
permit] assels or liabilifies to be measured ot fair value. The standord does
not expand the use of fair value in any new circumstances, SFAS No, 157
is effective for ATMI beginning on January 1, 2008. We do not expect that
this standard will have a material effect on our financia! position or results
of operations.

In June 2006, the FASB issued Interprelation No. 48, "Accounting for
Uncertainty in Income Toxes—an Interpretotion of FASE Statement
No. 109" (“FIN 48). FIN 48 clarifies the accounting for uncertainty in
income laxes recognized in a company’s financial statements in accor-
dance with SFAS No. 109, “Accounting for Income Taxes.” FIN 48 pre-
scribes a recognition threshold and measurement aftribute for the
financial statement recognifion and measuremen of o tax position faken,
or expected lo be taken, in o tax return, FIN 48 is effective for ATMI
heginning on Jonuary 1, 2007. We are evaluating our tox positions and
anticipate that the Interpretation will not have a significant impact on our
results of operations.

Certain 2005 and 2004 amounts in the accompanying consolidated
financial statements have been reclassified fo conform fo the 2006 presen-
totion. The effect of the reclossifications was not material to our financial
position or results of operations.

Other

Approximataly 6% of the Company’s employees are covered by collec-
tive borgaining agreements that will expire during 2007. All of the
employees covered by these agreements are based in Belgium, The net
assets of the Company's Belgium subsidiary represent approximately 3%
of the Company’s consolidated net ossets.

2. DISCONTINUED QOPERATIONS

In 2004, the Company sold the following non-core product lines: envi-
ronmental abatement equipment, materials sensing and monitoring equip-
ment, epitaxial services, outsourced parts cleoning and tool maintenance
services, the smartcard device venture, and gallium nitnde materials. In
accordance with SFAS No. 144, the Company accounted for these prod-
uct lines as discontinued operations for 2004 and 2003. The operating
results and gains on sale of these product lines are shown as o discontinued
operation in the consalidated stalements of operations.

In December 2004, the Company completed the sale of its environ-
menial abatement equipment business for $16.0 million in cash. A gain
of $2.7 million, net of taxes, was recognized on the sale of this business.

tn September 2004, the Company completed the sole of its Emosyn
smartcard business for $15.1 million in cash ond a 16.4% investment in
the entity that acquired the Emosyn smaricard business. A goin of $3.4
miflion, net of faxes, was recognized on the sole of the Emosyn smortcard
business. In April 2005, the 16.4% investment in the Emosyn smaricard
business was sold for its approximate carrying cost.
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In July 2004, the Company completed the sale of its epitaxial services
business for proceeds of $38.0 million. A gain of $0.5 million, net of
taxes, wos recognized on the sale of the epitaxial services business.

In June 2004, the Company completed the sale of its semiconductor
parts cleaning services business, “Fab Services,” for lotal proceeds of
$6.7 million, including $4.9 million of cash, and a note for the balance,
payable in three equal annual installments. A gain of $0.2 million, net of
taxes, was recognized on the sale of the Fab Services business.

In May 2004, the Company completed the sale of its life sofety sensors
business for total cash proceeds of $11.0 million. A gain of $0.1 million,
net of taxes, wos recognized on the sale of the life sofety sensors business.

In March 2004, the Company completed the sale of its gallium nitride
materials business for tofal cash proceeds of $10.3 million. A gain of
$1.2 million, net of toxes, wos recognized on the sale of the goffium
nitride materials business.

The aggregate gains from the sales of the business units noted above
are included in the accompanying statement of income as a gain on sales
of discontinued operations, net of income foxes,

At December 31, 2006, we have a remaining reserve of $1.8 million,
included in the consolidated balance sheet under the caption *Accrued
liabilities,” 1o cover confingencies related to notes receivable, warranty
obligations, and lease termination liabilities associated with the disposals
of these non-core product lines.

Revenues ond income from discontinued operations were as follows for
the year ended December 31, 2004 (in thousands):

2004
Revenues $63,868
Pretax income from discontinued operations (1) $17,532
Income from aperations of discontinued operations,
net of income faxes $ 3,313
Gain on sales of discontinued operations,
net of income toxes $ 8,083

{1) A gain on soles of discontinued operations of $12.4 million is included in the 2004
results of operations.

3. MARKETABLE SECURITIES
Marketable securities are comprised of the following at December 31, {in thousands):
2006 2005
Gross Estimated Gross Estimated
Unrealized Fair Unrealized Fair
Cost Gain (Loss) Value Cost Gain {Loss) Value
Securities in unreolized gain position:
Common stock $ M $2,227 $ 3198 3§ 429 5 2419 $ 3,048
Government debt obligations 5874 5 5,879 - - -
Government-sponsored debt obligotions 3,000 1 3,001 — — —
Subtotal 9,845 2,233 12,078 629 2,419 3,048
Secuiities in unrealized loss position:
Corporate debt obligations 26,460 {153} 26,307 110,233 (889) 109,344
Govemment debt obligotions 16,924 (20} 16,904 — - —_
Government-sponsored debt obligations 27,375 (157) 27,18 57,379 (769) 56,610
Subtotal 70,759 (330) 70,429 167,612 {1,658) 165,954
Securities of par:
Corporate debt obligations 10,003 - 10,003 26,234 - 26,234
Government debt obligations 52,960 - 52,960 29,950 — 29,950
Subtotal 62,963 _ 62,963 56,184 — 56,184
Total marketable securities $143,567 $1,903 $145470  $224425  § 78] $225,186
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maturities may differ from contractual maturities because the issuers of the securifies may exercise the right fo prepoy obligations without prepayment penalties.

Estimated

Cost Fair Value

Due in one year or less $120,331  $120,026
Due between one and two years 22,265 22,244
142,596 142,272

Common stock 971 3,198
$143,567  $145,470

This table shows the Company’s marketable securities that are in an unrealized loss position at December 31, 2006, and also shows the duration of time
the security has been in an unrealized loss position:

tess Than 12 Months 12 Months or Greater Total
Fair Unreclized Fair Unrealized Fair Unreglized
Value Losses Value Losses Value Losses
Corporate debt obligations (1) $ 2,000 $ (3 $24,307 $(150) $26,307 ${153)
Govemment debt obligations (1) 16,904 (19) - - 16,904 19
Government-sponsored debt obligations (1) 4,985 {15) 22,232 (143) 27,217 (158)
Total $23,889 $(37) $46,539 $(293) $70,428 $(330)

{1} The unrealized fosses on the Company’s investments in corporate debt, government debi obligations, and govemment-sponsored debt obligations were coused by general market infer-
est rate increases. At December 31, 2006, 31 of the Company’s investments are in an unrealized loss position. The confrociual terms of those invesiments do not permit the issuers Jo
settle the securities ot o price less than the amortized cost of the investment. Becouse the Company has the ability ond intent 1o hold those investments uniil o recovery of fair volue, which

moy be maturity, the Company does net consider the impairment of those investmens fo be other-than-temporary at December 31, 2006.

4. INVENTORIES
inventories are comprised of the following at December 31,
{in thousands):

&. PROPERTY, PLANT, AND EQUIPMENT, NET
Property, plant, and equipment, nel, is comprised of the following
(in thousands):

2006 2005 December 31, 2006 2005

Raw materiols $13,727 $9,192 Land $ 1,236 § 1,196
Work-in-process 1,926 2,392 Buildings 23,452 22,289
Finished goods 34,039 30,340 Machinery and equipment 114,284 107,285
49,692 41,924 Fumiture and fixtures 2,915 3,877

Excess and obsolescence reserve (2,353) (2,074) Leaseholq improvements ]g'g:)g ];:532

Inventores, ne 347339 33950  omnuctionn progres : s

166,706 159,735

As of December 31, 2006, the Company had commitmentsfor inventory Accumulated depreciation and amorfization  (73,987)  (76,914)
purchases of $2.2 million. $ 92,119 § 82,82

5. DERIVATIVE INSTRUMENTS

ATMi is o porty to four Japanese Yen {"JPY*) currency exchange forward
contracts that mature within one year, to manage its exposure to volatility
in this currency against the U.S. dollor. At December 31, 2006, ATMI had
$12.3 million notional amount of JPY cumrency exchange forward con-
tracts outstanding. The forward contracts were initiated fo hedge against
JPY-denominated payabtes on the balance sheet. At December 31, 2006,
the unreclized gain on oll dersivalive instruments is $0.3 million and hes
been recorded in the consolidated balance sheet in other curent assets
ond in other income, net on the consolidated statement of income,
because these transactions were not designated os hedges.

Depreciation and amortization expense for property, plant, and equip-
ment for the years ended December 31, 2006, 2005, ond 2004 wos
$17.4 million, $14.7 million, and $12.% million, respeciively.

Fully depreciated assets, which were no longer in use, of approximately
$16.1 million, were written off in the year ended December 31, 2006.

As of December 31, 2006, the Company had commitments for capital
expenditures of $0.4 million.
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7. GOODWILL AND OTHER INTANGIBLES

Changes in camrying amounis of goodwill and other intangibles for the year ended December 31, 2006 were as follows {in thousands):

Debt Issuance  Patents & Total Other
Goodwill Costs Trademarks Other Intangibles
Balance at January 1, 2004 $12,097 $1,557 $23,695 $3,927 $29179
Acquisitions 1,568(1) — — — —_
Amoriization - (224) (2,513 (988) (3,725)
Reclassification to equity upon conversion - (1,333) — — (1,333)
Other, including foreign currency translation 14 — 9 {24) {33)
Balance ot December 31, 2005 $13,681 } - $21,173 $2915 $ 24,088
Amortization — - {2,526) [903) (3.429)
Other, including foreign currency translation 53 - 40 (30) i0
Balence of December 31, 2006 $13,734 $ - $18,687 $1,982 $20,669
{1} Represens additional purchose price paid ta former shareholders of ESC, Inc. as a resuft of eam out forgets being met.
Goodwill and other intangibles balances consisted of the following af December 31, 2004 and 2005 {in thousands):
Patents & Totol Other
Goodwill  Trademarks Other Intangibles
Gross amount as of December 31, 2005 $13,681 $27.530 $ 46,076 $ 33,604
Accumulated amorization — {6.357) {3,161) 9.518)
Balonce as of December 31, 2005 $13,681 $21,173 $2,915 $ 24,088
Gross amount as of December 31, 2006 $13,734 $27,570 $ 5,969 $ 33,539
Accumulated amortizetion — (8,883) (3,987) (12,870)
Balance as of December 31, 2006 $13,734 $18,687 $ 1,982 $ 20,669

The approximate amortization expense expected to be recognized
related to infangible assets is as follows (in thousands):

Year Amount
2007 $ 3,244
2008 2,934
2009 2,930
2010 2,316
201 1,431
Thereofter 7812
Total $20,669
8. NOTES PAYABLE

On November 13, 2001, the Company sold $115.0 million of conver-
ible subordinated notes {the “Notes”) due November 15, 2004 in q private
offering. The Notes bore inferest ot 5.25% per annum and were convedible
by the holders into 5,183,095 shares of the Company’s common stock, ot
o conversion price of approximately $22.19 per shore. The Notes became
redeemable at the Company's option beginning on November 15, 2004,
in whole or in part, if ATMI's common stock exceeded 120% of the conver-
sion price for at least 20 trading doys within a period of 30 consecutive
trading days. The redemption amount beginning on November 15, 2004
ond ending on November 14, 2005 was 102.10%. Upon nofification of
redemption by the Company, the note halders had the option of choosing
to convert their Notes to common stock prior fo the redemption date.
Interest was payable to note holders on o semi-annual basis.
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On April 8, 2005, all of the Notes were converted info 5,183,095 shares
of common stock pursuant fo the provisions of the Indenture doted
November 15, 2001. Pursuant to such conversion, deferred financing costs
of $1.3 million and acerued but unpaid interest of $2.4 million, at the date
of conversion, were recorded as adjustments to additional paid-in capital.

9. LEASES

The Company leases office and manufacturing facilities, and certain
manufocturing equipment under several operafing leases expiring
between 2007 and 2011, Rental expense was $4.2 million, $3.8 million,
and $3.2 million for the years ended December 31, 2006, 2005, and
2004, respectively.

The following is a schedule of future minimum lease payments for operating
leasses as of December 31, 2006 (in thousands}:

Operating Leoses

2007 $3,715
2008 2,440
2009 1,220
2010 308
2011 2
Thereafter -
Totel minimum lease payments $7,685




10. INCOME TAXES
Pretax income from continuing operations wos toxed in the following
jurisdictions {in thousands):

The reconciliation of income tox expense (benefit) from confinuing
operations computed ot the US. federal statutory tox rate to the
Company’s tax expense {benefit) is as follows (in thousands}:

Year Ended December 31, 2006 2005 2004 For the Year Ended December 31, 2006 2005 2004
Domestic $48,763 341,127  $27,497  US. statutory rate $19,550 315884 $10,662
Foreign 7,093 4,257 2,967 State income taxes 668 555 658
Tota! pretax income $55,856 345384 $30,464 Foreign income toxes (722) 65 343
Tax exempt income (949) i (115)
Significant components of the provision (benefit] for income taxes for g:;elef: valuotion allowance (1,040)  {1,637) (904)
the periods presented ore os follows {in thousands): of geferre d fox asses (20) (56| (384)
December 31, 2006 2005 2004 g"ri}:‘::";ee?' to tax lishilfies “'m’ o -
Current: '
Federal $15080 § 7529 § 4,864 315,895 S$14.662 $10,358
State 1,410 948 173 _ ) o
Foreign 1,727 1,937 1,231 - ATMI has not prqued for U.S. fefit_arul |rf1comf3 qnd foreign }Nlthl‘}o'd-
Toral cumrent 18217 10,414 4,268 ing taxes on ﬂp[.JFOXImelY $25.3 million of undistributed eamings rom
non-U.S. operations as of December 31, 2006, because such earnings
Deferred: are infended to be reinvested indefinitely oulside of the United States.
Federal (1,896) 4,600 3,485 These eamings could become subject to additional tax if they are remit-
St‘”? (382) (93) 541 ted as dividends, loaned to ATMI, or upon sale of subsidiary stock. It is
Foreign (44) (259) 64 not practicable to estimate ihe amount or timing of the additional fax, i
Total defered (2,322) 4248 4,090 any, that eventually might be paid on the foreign eamings.
$15895 $14,662 310,358 In 2005, ATMI evaluated its position with respect to the indefinite rein-

Significant components of the Company’s deferred tax assets and
liabilities are as follows {in thousands}:

December 31, 2006 2005
Deferred tax assets:
Accrued liabilities $ 4791 § 5174
Inventory adjustments 5,975 5,600
Net operating loss and tax credit carryforwards 2,040 2,390
Equity-based compensation 3,626 952
Other, net 36 —
16,468 14,118
Valuotion allowance {416) (591)
16,052 13,527
Deferred fax liabilities:
Depreciation and amortization (7,746)  (7,494)
Unrealized gain on marketable securities {703) {279)
Other, net - (10)
(8449) (7,783

Net deferred tox assets $ 7603 § 5744

The valuation allowance relotes to realizabifity of certain U.S. state and
foreign net operating losses and certain ULS. state tax credits. In 2006,
the valuation allowance was reduced by $0.2 million due to the expiration of
U.S. state tax credits.

As of December 31, 2006, the Company has a deferred tax asset
reloted to state net operoting loss corforwards of $0.6 million.
Additionally, the Company has state tax credit camporwards of §1.4 million.
The state net operafing loss and tax credit camyforwards will expire at
various dates in 2007 through 2024, if not used.

vestment of foreign eamings and elected not to avail itself of the repatrition
provisions confained in the American Jobs Crection Act of 2004,

11. PROFIT SHARING PLAN

The Company maintains a 401{k} profit sharing plan covering substan-
tially all of its domestic employees that is subject fo the provisions of the
Employee Retirement Income Security Act of 1974, The Company's
matching contributions are discretionary by plon year and were approx-
mately $0.8 million, $0.7 million, ond $0.5 million for the years ended
December 31, 2006, 2005, and 2004, respectively.

12. STOCKHOLDERS' EQUITY '

The following table shows the effect of compensation cost erising from
equity-based payment arrangements recognized in the consolidated
stoternents of income (in thousands}:

2006 2005 2004

Cost of revenues $ 910 § — $ —

Reseorch and cevelopment 773 — —

Selling, general, ond administrative 7,681 2,226 589
Total equity-based

compensalion expense 9,364 2,226 589

Income tox benefit 3,137 720 204

Net equity-based
compensafion expense

$6,227  $1,506 $385

No equity-based compensation cost was capitalized.
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Summary of Plans

We currently have five equity-based compensation plans which provide
for the granting of up to 8,900,000 nonqualified stock opfions, incentive
stock options (“50s"), stock oppreciation rights, and restricied stock
awards to employees, directors, ond consultanis of the Company. Stock
options typically vest over periods ranging from one to four years with @
maximum confraciual term of ten years. Restricted stock awards fypically
vest over periods ranging from three to five years. Shares issued os o result
of stock option exercises are primarily funded with issuance of new shares.

The: following table shows the number of shares approved by share-
holders for each plon and the number of shares that remain available for
equity owards at December 31, 2006 {in thousands):

Number Number
of of
Shares Shares
Stock Plan Approved  Available
1997 Stock Plan (1 200 104
1998 Stock Plan (1) 2,000 474
2000 Stock Plan [2) 2,000 274
2003 Stock Plan (2) 3,000 1,611
Employee Stock Purchase Plon (3) 1,000 s
Totals 8,900 2,781

(1} Exercise prices for 150s granted under this plan may not be less than 100% of the fair
merket volue for the Company's common stock on the date of grant. Exercise prices for
non-qualified stock options granted under this plon may not be Jess than 50% of the foir
market value for the Company’s common stock on the date of grant.

{2) Exercise prices for [SOs and non-qualified stock options granted under this plan may not
be less than 100% of the foir market value for the Compeny’s common stock on the date
of grant,

{3) This plan enables all employees to subscribe ot siv-month intervals to purchose shares of
common sock of the lower of 85% of the dosing price of the shares on the day previ-
ous to the first day or the lnst day of each six-month period end is a compensatory plan,
as defined by SFAS No. 123(R). Efective January 1, 2007, this plan hos been amended
such thot employees moy purchose shares at 95% of the closing price on the doy previ-
ous fo the last day of each sixmonth offering period. Beginning January 1, 2007, this
plan is no longer considered to be compensatory, as defined by SFAS No. 123(R).

Fair Valve

The Company uses the Black-Scholes-Merton opfions-pricing model fa
determine the fair volue of stock options under SFAS No. 123(R), consis-
tent with that used for pro forma disclosures in prior yeors. Management
is required to make certain assumptions with respect to selected model
inputs, including anticipated changes in the underlying stock price (i.e.,
expected volatility} and option exercise activity [i.e., expected term), For
awards granfed subsequent to January 1, 2006, expected volatility is
based on the historical volotility of ATMI common stock for o period
shotter than the expected term of the options. We have excluded the his-
torical volatility prior to the public announcement regarding the sale of
our non-core businesses in 2004, because those businesses that were
sold represented o significont portion of ATMI's consolidated business
and were subjed to considerable cyclicality associated with the semicon-
ductor equipment industry, which drove increased volatility in ATMY's stock
price. The expected ferm of options granted is derived using the “simpli-
fied” method as allowed under the provisions of the Securities and
Exchange Commission’s Staff Accounting Bulletin No. 107 and represents
the period of time thot options granted are expected fo be outstanding.
The risk-free rote is based on the U.S. Treasury vield curve in effect af the
fime of grant for a period commensurate with the estimated expecied life.
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in accordance with SFAS No. 123(R), in the determination of equity-
based compensation cost, the Company estimates the fotal number of
instruments that will be forfeited as o result of o failure to provide the reg-
uisite service to earn the award. Prior to the adoption of SFAS No. 123(R),
for purposes of the pro forma disclosures under SFAS No. 123, the
Company did not make an estimate of fodeitures, but instend subse-
quently reversed pro forma compensation cost for forfeited owards when
the awards were actually forfeited. The effect of forfeitures on restricted
stock was not material in periods prior to January 1, 2008.

The weighted-average fair value of options granted during the years
ended December 31, 2006, 2005, and 2004 was $12.07, $12.39, and
$12.76, respectively, based on the Block-Scholes-Merton opfions-pricing
model. The following weighted-average assumptions were used for grants
in the periods indicated:

2006 2005 2004

Stack option grants:
Risk-free interest rate 4.70% 390%  3.50%
Expected term, in years 6.25 510 4.50
Expected volatility 32.4% 68.3%  67.1%
Dividend yield 0% 0% 0%

Prior to January 1, 2006 and the adoption of SFAS 123(R), the Company's
expected volotility on shares of its common stock wos based on historicel
volatility over a period commensurate with the expected ferm of the options.
However, as a result of adopting SFAS 123(R), for the reasons stated above,
the Company has determined thot the historical volafility used for gronts in
2006 15 limited to the period subsequent to the sale of cur non-core businesses,
which is less than the expected term of the apfions,

The Company uses historical data to estimate forfeitures of awards due
to employee terminations in order to esfimate compensation cost for awards
expecied to vest. In addition, we seporate employees into groups thei have
similar characteristics for purposes of making forfeiture esfimates.

Stock Option and Restricted Stock Activity

The following toble summorizes the option activity under the plons as
of December 31, 2006 and changes during the year then ended {options
are expressed in thousands; averages are colculated on a weighted basis;
life in years; intrinsic value expressed in thousands):

Number Average Average Aggregate
of Excercise Remaining Intrinsic
Opfions  Price Life Value
Qutstonding ot
December 31,2005 3,556  $24.02
Granted 214 $28.88
Exercised (663) $21.27
Forfeited (346) $24.96
Quistanding at
December 31, 2006 2,761 $24.95 52 $18,150
Exercisable at
December 31, 2006 1,792 $25.70 40 $11,395

The aggregate intrinsic value represents the difference between the
Company's closing stock price of $30.53 os of December 31, 2006 and the
exercise price of dilutive options ot that date, multiplied by the number of
dilutive options outstanding as of that date. The fotal infrinsic value of stock




options exercised during the years ended December 31, 2006, 2005, ond
2004 wos $7.0 million, $7.5 million, and $2.6 million, respectively. The
total foir value of options which vested during the years ended December 31,
2006, 2005, and 2004 wos $6.5 million (505,000 shares], $7.6 million
{490,000 shores), and $9.6 million (571,000 shares), respectively.

The tax benefit reclized from equity-bosed compensation totaled $2.2
million and $2.5 million for the years ended December 31, 2006 and
2005, respectively.

The following table summarizes restricied stock activity under the 2003
Stock Plon as of December 31, 2006 ond changes during the year then
ended (shares are expressed in thousands; averages are colculated on o
weighted basis):

Average
Number Gront

of Date Fair
Options Volue

Non-vested ot December 31, 2005 359 $22.54
Granted 260 $29.23
Vested (34) $21.87
Forfeited {26) $24.71
Non-vested ot December 31, 2004 559 $25.59

The tota! foir value of restricted stock which vested during the year
ended December 31, 2006 was $0.7 million {30 in the yeors ended
December 31, 2005 and 2004).

As of December 31, 2006, $7.5 million of unrecognized compensa-
tion cost related to non-vested stock options is expeded to be recognized
over o weighted-average period of approximately 1.3 years. As of
December 31, 2006, $7.7 million of unrecognized compansation cost
reloted to restricted stock is expected fo be recognized over a weighted-
average period of opproximalely 2.2 yeors.

Earnings Per Share
The following table presents the computation of basic and diluted eamings
per shore from continuing operations {in thousands, excepi per share data):

2006 2005 2004
Numerator:
Income from
continuing operations $39,961 330,722 $20,106
Denomingior:
Denominater for basic
eamings per share—
weighted-averoge shores 36,083 35707 31,247
Dilutive effect of employes
stock options 559 462 370
Dilutive effect of restricted stock 17 99 23
Dilutive effect of warrants - 8 10
Denominator for diluted
samings per share 36,859 36,276 31,650
Eamings per share from
continuing operations—basic $1.1 $0.86 $0.64
Eamings per share from
continuing operations—
assuming dilution $1.08 $0.85 $0.64

|

The following potential common shares have been excluded from the
calculation of weighted-average shares outstanding, because their effect
was considered 1o be antidilutive {in thousands}:

2006 2005 2004
Employee stock options 404 532 1,921
Shares issuable upon conversion
of the 5.25% convertible
subordinated notes due
November 15, 2006 - — 5,183
Total 404 532 7,104

The 20,000 warrants outstanding as of December 31, 2004, at an
exercise price of $11.75, were exercised during 2005.

The Compony has never declared or paid cash dividends on its
capital stock.

in October 2005, the Company’s Board of Direclors approved o shore
repurchose program for up to $75.0 million of ATMI common stock and
in August 2006, the Company’s Board of Directors approved o second
share repurchase program for an additional $150.0 million {collectively,
the “Repurchase Programs”). Share repurchases are mode from fime to
time in open market transactions ot prevailing market prices, or in pri-
vately negotialed transoctions. Monagement determines the timing and
amount of purchases under the Repurchose Programs based upon mar-
ket conditions or ather foctors. The Repurchase Programs do nof require
the Company 1o purchase any specific number or amount of shares and
may be suspended or reinstated at any fime ot the Company's discretion
and without natice. Under the Repurchase Programs, the Company has
purchased a total of 3,594,000 shares of its common stock ot an aver-
age price of $27.91 per share, of which $0.8 million was included in
accounts poyable af December 31, 2006, because the settlement dote
was subsequent to December 31, 2006.

Subsequent 1o December 31, 2006 through Februory 19, 2007, the
Company purchased approximately 216,000 shares of its common stock at
an gverage price of $31.78 per shore pursuant to the Repurchase Programs.
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13. ACCUMULATED OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
The components of accumulated other comprehensive income are
os follows (in thousands):

Unrealized
Guoin
{Loss) on
Currency  Avoilable-
Translation  for-Sale

Adjustments  Securities  Total
$1,468 $1,432 $2,900

Balance ot January 1, 2004
Reclassification adjustment for
reclized gain on availoble-for-sale
securities sold (net of tax
provision of $79) (1) — 129)  (129)
Unreolized loss on available-for-sale
securities (ret of fox
benefit of $608)

Cumulative translation adjustment

Balance ot December 31, 2004
Reclossification adjusiment for
realized loss on avoilable-for-sale
securilies sold [net of tax
benefit of $66} (1) - 113 13
Unrealized gain on available-for-sale
securities (net of tax

— (989 (989)
3,077 — 3077

4,545 314 4,859

provision of $31) — 53 53
Cumulotive franslation adjustment (2,928) —  {2,924)
Balance ot December 31, 2005 1,619 480 2,099

Reclassificofion adjusiment for

realized loss on available-for-sale

securities sold {met of tax

benefit of $321) (1) - 547 547
Unrealized gain on availoble-for-sale

securities (net of tox

provision of $105) - 178 178
Cumulative translation odjustment 2,814 - 2814

Balance ot December 31, 2006  $4,433  $1,205 $5,638

{1) Cetermined based on the specific identification method,
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14. COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES

In July 2003, a subsidiary of ATMI filed suit against Praxair, Inc., the
parent company of Praxair Electronics, in the United States District Court
for the Southem District of New York, charging it with infringing wo
patents ATMI holds for certain gos storage and delivery systems. ATMI is
seeking domages and on injunclion against Praxair marketing its UpTime
system. In April 2008, the New York Distrit Court granted Praxair’s
request for summary judgment that all asserted claims of ATMI’s two VAC
patents are invalid. ATMI has appealed the decision and will continue fo
pursue ifs claims vigorously.

On December 22, 2003, Praxair, Inc. and Praxair Technology, Inc. filed
suit against ATMI, Inc. and Advanced Technology Materials, Inc. in the
United States District Court for the District of Delaware alleging infringe-
ment of three patents owned by Praxair Technology, Inc. related to certain
gas storoge and delivery systems. Praxair is seeking domages and an
injunction against ATMI marketing its VAC system. In 2005, the Deloware
District Court granted ATMI's request for summary judgment that all
asserted claims of one of Praxair's patents are invalid. Attrial, a jury found
the remaining claims asserted by Praxair valid and infringed by ATMI's
VAC products. ATMI seeks to have those remaining claims held unen-
forceoble by the Count. The determination of any damage amount has
been deferred to o later proceeding. ATMI intends to continue o pursue
a vigarous defense against Praxair's claims. ATMI, Inc. has a limited con-
tingent fee arrangement with certain outside counsel relating to the
Delaware litigation,

In 2005, o subsidiary of ATMI filed suit against Praxair, Inc. and Praxair
GmbH in Dusseldor, Germany, charging infringement of a patent ATM!
holds for certain gos storage and delivery systems. Since the third quarter
of 2006, a preliminary injunction against Praxair selling or supplying its
UpTime system in Germany has been in effect.

in August 2006, o subsidiary of ATMI filed suit in Belgium against
Praxair, Inc. and Belgian offiliates of Praxair, Inc. charging infringement of
a patent ATMI holds for certain gas storage and delivery systems. In
September 2006, o request for preliminary injunction against Praxair, Inc.
and its Belgian offiliates was filed. The request was granted in port and a
preliminary injunction is currently in place against the public marketing of
the UpTime system worldwide. Both porties appealed and o decision of
the appeal court in Antwerp, Belgium is expected shorly.

ATMl s, from time fo time, subject to various legal actions, govemmen-
tal audits, and proceedings relating to various matters incidental o its busi-
ness including product liobility and environmental claims. While the
outcome of such matters cannot be predicted with cerainty, in the opinion
of management, after reviewing such matters and consulting with ATMI's
counse! and considering any applicoble insurance or indemnifications, any
liability which may ultimately be incurred, including the Praxair litigations,
is nat expected 1o materially affect ATMI's consolidated financial position,
cash flows, or results of operations.

At December 31, 2006, the Company had $0.9 millien of outstonding
standby letters of credit related to a lease and other obligations.

ATMI cumrently has self-insurance limits for U.S. employee medical claims.
The medical plan for U.S. employees has a stop-loss of $0.1 million per
individual occurrence ond an annuol aggregate stop-loss of $4.0 million.




15. GEOGRAPHIC DATA
The Company’s geographic daia for the years ended December 31, 2006, 2005, and 2004 are as follows {in thousands):

South Other Europe
United States Taiwan Jopan Korea Pacific Rim and Chther Total

December 31, 2006

Revenues $103,921 $67,451 $46,924 $36,427 $37,794 $33,396 $325,913

tong-lived assets 127,657 4,436 1,167 2,774 %9 5291 141,424
December 31, 2005

Revenues $ 92,744 $ 64,714 $ 43,077 $27,314 $24,928 $28,977 $ 281,754

Long-lived assets 127,616 374 882 2,531 101 3,543 135,049
December 31, 2004

Revenues § 86,365 $ 54,781 $ 40,122 $ 18,204 $ 21,439 $ 25,380 $ 246,291

Long-lived asses 111,349 467 917 2,494 147 3,828 119,202

Revenues are attributed to countries based on the location of the customer. Long-lived assets are locoted in the respective geographic regions, as
shown obove. Other than Taiwan, Japan, and South Kerea, no one specific country within the Pacific Rim or within Evrope accounted for greater than

10% of consolidated revenues and long-lived assets in 2006, 2005, and 2004.

16. QUARTERLY RESULTS OF OPERATIONS (UNAUDITED)
Summarized quarterly resulis of operations data is as follows (in thousands, except per share amounts):

Quarter

2006 First Second Third Fourth
Revenues $76,93b6 $82,484 $32,124 $84,369
Gross profit 36,808 41,942 41,908 42,725(a)
Operaling income 8,637 12,649 12,460 13,271
Net income $ 7430 $10,050 $11,354(b) $11,127
Basic income per common share:

Nel income per common share $0.20 $0.27 $0.32 $0.32
Diluted income per common share:

Net income per common share $0.20 $0.27 $0.31 $0.3

Quarter

2005 First Second Third Fourth
Revenues $66,097 $69,269 $49,736 $76,652
Gross profit 34,184 34,812 35141 37,366
Operating income 9,466 10,595 10,244 10,104
Net income § 4,051 § 7,967 $ 8,253 $ 8,451
Basic income per common share:

Net income per common share $0.19 $0.22 $0.22 $0.23
Diluted income per common shore:

Net income per common share $0.19 $0.22 $0.22 $0.22

{a} Includes a $1.4 million gain from o VAT recovery in Japan.
{o} Includes recognition of $1.7 million tox benefit for adjustment of our tux liabilities as o result of changes in fads or circumstances.
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Report of Independent Registered
Public Accounting Firm

The Boord of Directors and Stockholders of ATMI, Inc.

We have oudited the accompanying consolidated balance sheets of ATMI, Inc. as of December 31, 2006 and 2005, and the reloted consolidoted
statements of income, stockholders’ equity, and cash flows for each of the three years in the period ended December 31, 2006. These financial stofements
are the responsibility of the Company's management. Our responsibility is lo express an opinion on these financial statements bosed on our audits.

We conducted our audits in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board {United States). Those standards require
that we plan and perform the audit o obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free of material misstatement. An audit
includes examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. An audit also includes assessing the
accounting principles used and significant esfimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall financial statement presentation. We believe
that our audits provide a reasonable basis for our opinion.

In our opinion, the financial stotements referred to above present fairly, in alt material respects, the consolidated financial position of ATMI, Inc. at
December 31, 2006 and 2005, and the consolidated results of its operations and its cash flows for each of the three years in the period ended
December 31, 2006, in conformity with U.S. generally accepted accounting principles.

As discussed in Note 1 fo the consolidated financial statements, the Company adopted Statement of Financial Accounting Standards No. 123(R),
“Share-Based Poyment,” effective January 1, 2006.

Wa also have oudited, in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board {United States), the effectiveness of
ATMI, Inc.’s internal conirol over financial reporting as of December 31, 2006, based on criteria estoblished in Internal Control—Integrated
Framework issued by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway Commission and our report dated February 19, 2007 expressed

an unqualified opinion thereon.
Sanet + MLLP

Stamford, Connecticut
February 19, 2007
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Report of Independent Registered
Public Accounting Firm

The Board of Direclors and Stockholders of ATMI, Inc.

We have audited management's assessment, included in the accompanying “Management’s Report on Internal Control Over Financial Reporting,” that
ATMI, Inc. maintained effective internal control over financiol reporting os of December 31, 2006, based on criteria estoblished in Internal Control—
Integrated Framework isswed by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway Commission (the COSO criteria). ATMI, Inc.'s management
is respansible for maintaining effective infernal control over finandial reporting and for its assassment of the effectiveness of intenal contro! over financial
reporting. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on manegement's assessment and an opinion on the effectiveness of the company’s intemal control
over financial reporting based on our audit.

We conducied our audit in accordance with the standards of the Public Compony Accounting Oversight Board (United States). Those standards
require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether effective intemal control over financial reporting was main-
tained in oll moterial respects. Our audit included obtaining an understanding of intemal control over financial reporting, evaluating management's
assessment, testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of intemal control, and performing such other procedures as we considered
necessary in the circumstances. We believe that our audit provides o reasonable bosis for our opinion.

A company’s intemal control over financial reporting is a process designed io provide reasonable ossurance regarding the reliability of finencial
reporting ond the preparation of financial statements for esternal purposes in accordonce with generally accepted accounting principles. A company’s
internal control over financial reporting includes those policies and procedures that {1} pertain fo the maintenance of recards that, in reasonable detail,
accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company; (2) provide reasonable assurance that transacfions are
recorded as necessary to permit preparation of financial statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and
expenditures of the company are being made only in accordance with authorizations of manogement and directors of the company; and (3) provide
reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely defection of unauthorized acquisition, use, or disposition of the company’s assets that could have
a material effect on the finoncial statements.

Because of its inherent limitations, internal controf over financial reporting may not prevent or detect misstatements. Also, projeciions of any evalua-
fion of effectiveness to future periods are subject to the risk that controls may become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree
of compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.

In our opinion, monagement's assessment that ATMI, Inc. maintained effective internal control over financial reporting as of December 31, 2006, is
fairly stated, in oll material respects, based on the COSO criteria. Also, in our opinion, ATMI, Inc. maintained, in oll material respects, effective interal
conirel over financiol reporting as of December 31, 2006, based on the COSQ criteric.

We also have audited, in accordance with the stendards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board [United States), the consolidated
balance sheets of ATMI, Inc. as of December 31, 2006 and 2005, and the reloted consolidated statements of income, stockholders’ equity, and
cash flows for each of the three years in the period ended December 31, 2006 of ATMI, Inc. and our report dated February 19, 2007 expressed

an ungualified opinion thereon.
Sanct ¥ MLLP

Stamford, Connecticut
february 19, 2007
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NORTH AMERICA

Arizona

Customer Sales and Service
2151 East Broadway Road
Tempe, Arizona 85282
480.736.74600

Connecticut

Corporate Headquerters
SDS Manufacturing

Research & Development

7 Commerce Drive

Danbury, Connecticut 06810
800.766.2681
203.794.1100

Minnesota

High-Purity Materials Handling end
Delivery

10851 Louisiana Avenue South
Bloomington, Minnesota 55438
800.966.6698

952.942.0855

Texas

Customer Sales and Service
13809 Research Boulevard
Austin, Texas 78750
512.418.8200

Materials Manufacturing
706 Houston Clinton Drive
Burnet, Texas 78611
888.303.4401
512.756.7314

EUROPE

Belgium
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Reugelstroat 2
3320 Hoegaarden
Belgium

32.16.76.6159

Germany

Customer Sales and Service
Inselkammerstr 2

82008 Unterhaching
Germany

49.89.622995.0

ASIA

Ching

ATM! China

Suite 201-203, Building 7
#3000 LongDong Avenue
Pudong 201203, Shanghai
Chino

B6.21.6876.7670

Japon

ATM! Japan

The ltoyoma Tower 3F
3-7-18 Mita

Minato-ku, Tokyo 108-0073
Japan

81.3.5745.2488

Singapore

ATMI Singapore

25 Imernational Business Park,
04-75 German Centre
Singapore 609916
65.6562.8200

South Korea

ATMI Koreo

Korea Advanced Nano Fab Center, 11F
B06-10, lui-dong, Yeongtong-gu, Suwon-si
Gyeonggi-do, 443-270

South Korea

82.(0).31.544.6260

Taiwan

ATMI Taiwan

4F-7, No. B1, Shui-lee Road
Hsin-chv 300

Taiwan, ROC
886.3.516.9248

Asia Technology Development Center
No. 669, Section 4, Chung-Hsin Road
Chutung Town, Hsinchu County
Taiwan, ROC

886.3.582.0858




SEMICONDUCTOR MATERIALS

® ATMI’s Materials Presence
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+ High-K Interconnect Era
+ Copper Interconnect Era

Aluminum Interconnect Era
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